Public Document Pack

When telephoning, please ask for: Democratic Services
Direct dial 0115914 8511
Email democraticservices@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Our reference:

Your reference:
Date: 27 September 2023

To all Members of the Communities Scrutiny Group

Dear Councillor

A Meeting of the Communities Scrutiny Group will be held on Thursday, 5
October 2023 at 6:00pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena, Rugby
Road, West Bridgford to consider the following items of business.

This meeting will be accessible and open to the public via the live stream on
YouTube and viewed via the link: https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Please be aware that until the meeting starts the live stream video will not be
showing on the home page. For this reason, please keep refreshing the home
page until you see the video appear.

Yours sincerely

AF

Gemma Dennis
Monitoring Officer

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest

Link to further information in the Council’s Constitution

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 20 July 2023 (Pages 1 - 6)
4, Review of Canal and Rivers Trust Partnership Funding (Pages 7 -
58)

Report of the Director - Neighbourhoods
5. Social Housing Models (Pages 59 - 70)
Report of the Director - Neighbourhoods
6. Smoke Control Areas in the Borough (Pages 71 - 86)

Report of the Director - Neighbourhoods

Rushcliffe Borough
Council Customer
Service Centre

Fountain Court
Gordon Road
West Bridgford
Nottingham
NG2 5LN

Email:
customerservices
@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Telephone:
0115981 9911

www.rushcliffe.gov.uk

Opening hours:
Monday, Tuesday and
Thursday

8.30am - 5pm
Wednesday

9.30am - 5pm

Friday

8.30am - 4.30pm

Postal address
Rushcliffe Borough
Council

Rushcliffe Arena
Rugby Road

West Bridgford
Nottingham
NG27YG

M2 disability
A confident

EMPLOYER ——

RUSHCLIFFE - GREAT PLACE = GREAT LIFESTYLE = GREAT SPORT


https://www.youtube.com/user/RushcliffeBC
https://www.rushcliffe.gov.uk/about-us/about-the-council/policies-strategies-and-other-documents/accessible-documents/council-constitution/#Councillor%20Code%20of%20Conduct

7. Work Programme (Pages 87 - 88)

Report of the Director — Finance and Corporate Services

Membership

Chair: Councillor G Williams

Vice-Chair: Councillor L Plant

Councillors: M Barney, J Billin, S Ellis, G Fletcher, R Mallender, H Parekh and
A Phillips

Meeting Room Guidance

Fire Alarm Evacuation: in the event of an alarm sounding please evacuate the
building using the nearest fire exit, normally through the Council Chamber. You
should assemble at the far side of the plaza outside the main entrance to the
building.

Toilets: are located to the rear of the building near the lift and stairs to the first
floor.

Mobile Phones: For the benefit of others please ensure that your mobile phone is
switched off whilst you are in the meeting.

Microphones: When you are invited to speak please press the button on your
microphone, a red light will appear on the stem. Please ensure that you switch
this off after you have spoken.

Recording at Meetings

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 allows filming and
recording by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Rushcliffe Borough Council is committed to being open and transparent in its
decision making. As such, the Council will undertake audio recording of meetings
which are open to the public, except where it is resolved that the public be
excluded, as the information being discussed is confidential or otherwise exempt



Agenda Iltem 3

Rushcliffe MINUTES

OF THE MEETING OF THE
COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY GROUP

THURSDAY, 20 JULY 2023
Held at 7.00 pm in the Council Chamber, Rushcliffe Arena, Rugby Road, West
Bridgford

PRESENT:
Councillors G Williams (Chair), L Plant (Vice-Chair), M Barney, J Billin, S Ellis,
G Fletcher, R Mallender, H Om and H Parekh

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

D Burch Service Manager Neighbourhoods

G Carpenter Service Manager Public Protection

A CIiff Empty Homes Officer

R Cottee Revenues and Benefits Principal Officer
E Richardson Democratic Services Officer
APOLOGIES:

Councillors A Phillips

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 March 2023

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2023 were approved as a true
record and were signed by the Chair.

Role and Remit of Communities Scrutiny Group

The Chair presented the terms of reference for the Communities Scrutiny
Group to Members noting that the purpose of the Group was to positively and
proactively contribute to the ongoing success and good management of the
Council.

He said that the Group would achieve this by:

e Reviewing the Council’s partnerships to ensure that community needs
were being met and the partnership was providing good value for money

e Identifying areas of community concern, exploring how this could be met
and make recommendations to that effect

e Consider concerns specific to the local area in terms of health and
wellbeing and make recommendations to improve the health and
wellbeing of local residents

e Consider projects and initiatives to further the Council’s efforts to protect
the environment of the Borough and promote environmental

Page 1



sustainability to our residents
¢ Reviewing the Council's policies and strategies as appropriate prior to
adoption.

Review of the Empty Homes Strategy and Council Tax Implications

The Service Manager for Public Protection presented the report of the Director
for Neighbourhoods and noted that as the Empty Homes Strategy was due for
renewal at the end of 2023 it was timely for it to be reviewed by the Group
today to help shape and form the Strategy going forward.

The Service Manager for Public Protection explained that whilst the empty
homes function of Environmental Health work was discretionary, the impact
was so great that the Council considered it necessary and valuable. He said
that in 2019 there were over 500 empty properties across the Borough and that
empty homes could be detrimental to the community through attracting
vandalism, fly tipping, criminal and anti-social behaviours and could reduce the
value of neighbouring properties.

The Service Manager for Public Protection said that bringing properties back
into use assisted in meeting housing needs and improved the housing stock
within the Borough and helped to regenerate blighted areas. They also
contributed to the Council’s income through Council Tax contributions and
Empty Homes Bonus.

The Service Manager for Public Protection said that it was not expected that
the Government would make any significant changes to legislation, nor did the
Council anticipate making significant changes to the Strategy subject to
feedback from the Group. He referred the Group to suggested areas for review
at paragraph 4.22 of the report.

The Empty Homes Officer explained that the Empty Homes Strategy was first
implemented by the Council in April 2019 and at the same time it employed a
part-time dedicated Empty Homes Officer. He said that early work involved
creating processes and procedures and launching the website to provide a first
point of reference.

The Empty Homes Officer highlighted key achievements since 2019, being
that:
e 74 problematic homes had been returned into use with intervention from
the Council
e 2,400 properties had returned to use without intervention but likely
impacted by communications from the Council
e 61 enforcement notices had been issued by the Council
e The Council had developed a comprehensive database of all empty
homes across the Borough
e Stricter enforcement procedures had been adopted, one enforced sale
had been completed and four further enforced sales were progressing.

The Empty Homes Officer said that the number of long term empty homes had

reduced from 511 at 2019 to 465 in 2023 and that on average 10% of long term
empty homes were removed from the database every month, with a similar

Page 2



amount added. He said that the Borough remained below the national average
of 1.02% for long term empty home against dwellings, standing at 0.83%.

The Revenues and Benefits Principal Officer provided a summary of Council
Tax levies on empty homes, explaining that empty homes were deemed to be
where they were not a person’s main home. He said that people could own as
many homes as they wished but could only live in one main home. He
explained that the classification for second homes were homes that were
suitable for overnight accommodation but which did not need to be stayed in.
He said that second homes were excluded from the premium.

The Revenues and Benefits Principal Officer said that the Council had started
levying the premium on unoccupied and unfurnished properties in April 2018
and that the premium was levied on the property and carried forward if
ownership changed. He detailed the revenue generated from the premium, of
which the Council could retain approximately 10%, and noted a proposed
legislative change to bring in the option to charge the premium on second
homes after one year.

The Empty Homes Officer informed the Group that the Council currently had 46
properties classified as a high priority, that eight of those were expected to be
returned to use within the next three months and the Council proposed
pursuing empty property management orders on three properties imminently.
He confirmed that the Council was progressing a number of enforced sales,
was engaging with owners on a further 20 priority properties and that
enforcement action was being progressed for all of the top ten priority cases.

The Empty Homes Officer took the Group through a variety of case studies,
including a badly damaged house in West Bridgford which had resulted in a
successful enforced sale, from which the Council could recover fees for work
and officer time.

The Group thanked Officers for the update and for their excellent work and
thought that there was much benefit to the community in bringing houses back
into use. The Group asked whether having more resource would be helpful.

The Empty Homes Officer said that his role was reactionary but that more
resource would enable more proactive work and an increased number of empty
properties being dealt with.

The Empty Homes Officer explained that the unfurnished versus unoccupied
distinction was purely for Council Tax purposes and did not impact on whether
he would investigate a property as a possible empty home. He added that
there was no specific type of reason, nor debt, required for him to initiate
inquiry into a property and that investigation could emanate from a reported
issue. He said that the Council could take action on any property within the
Borough, including those owned by the public sector, although it could not
serve notice on itself.

Members of the Group noted that the existing Strategy was working and

bringing properties back into use and asked whether there were any changes
that could be made to improve that further. The Empty Homes Officer

Page 3



explained that the Council had to work within the legal frameworks available to
it and that it was using all the tools that were available to it currently.

The Group asked about the rates of Council Tax charged and support available
for owners. The Revenues and Benefits Principal Officer explained that the
Council levied a 50% charge for properties that became unfurnished for 28
days rising to a full charge for up to two years. He said that the Council offered
a S13A relief application for owners experiencing exceptional circumstances.
The Empty Homes Officer said that the Council carried out extensive research
and would tailor its approach for each property and while the Council did not
provide financial aid he would signpost to relevant support and associations
where applicable, including both internal departments and external
organisations.

In relation to the percentage of the premium income received by the Council,
the Revenues and Benefits Principal Officer explained that this was determined
by the level of precept allocation retained by the Council and similarly for parish
councils also.

The Group referred a property becoming classified as empty after six months
and thought that this could be due a variety of reasons, such as for
renovations. The Empty Homes Officer confirmed that whilst he would write to
the owners of the property to ask if they required any assistance, these
properties would go the bottom of the list and would only become a priority if
still empty after a long period of time.

In relation to furnishing a property to avoid classification as an empty home, the
Empty Homes Officer said that it would be possible for the Council to
investigate and argue at court that it had been furnished for that reason only.

In response to a question about Empty Dwelling Management Orders (EDMO)
the Empty Homes Officer said that an EDMO was one of a selection of tools
available to the Council and the only one specifically designed for empty
homes compared to others which came, for example, from planning and
housing legislation. He explained that to qualify for an EMO a property had to
have been empty for two years and would then need to be refurbished by the
Council at its own cost, with costs only recoverable within a seven year period.
The Empty Homes Officer said that if the Council thought it unlikely that the
rental income within the seven year period would cover the refurbishment costs
the Council would look to take a different approach.

The Chair asked about interaction with the Planning Department and the
Empty Homes Officer said that he would get involved when there was an issue
with a property and when planning permission had been granted but not
started, that he could contact the owner to see if they were experiencing any
problems and with owners’ permission could discuss the application with the
Planning Team.

In relation to the website the Empty Homes Officer confirmed that it was
continually reviewed and updated but said that it was hard to know how many
people were using it. In relation to it generating referrals, the Group were
informed that information was received through a wide variety of routes and

Page 4



sources, including Councillors, residents and partner agencies, often triggered
by social media communications and it was noted that 99% of complaints were
about properties already known to the Council.

In relation to a decrease in empty homes compared to an increase in charges,
the Revenues and Benefits Principal Officer explained that this was due to
changes in legislation increasing the premium chargeable.

The Group asked about comparative data from before Empty Homes Strategy
to now and the Empty Homes Officer said that prior to 2019 the Council would
respond to specific complaints about specific properties, such as to deal with
vermin, with no longer term involvement specifically related to the property
being empty. The Group was informed that the Council was now able to
investigate deeper and have longer term involvement focussed on resolving
the empty home rather than just the initial short-term problem.

In relation to probate, the Group was informed that the Council would only
become involved six months after a property had gone through probate and
recognised that it was important to be sensitive to emotional attachment to a
property and to take care in exploring future intentions for the property.

Councillor Billin asked whether the Strategy could place greater emphasis on
the fact that the Strategy would resolve housing need.

Members of the Group noted the complexity of some empty homes cases and
the time involved and suggested that increasing the amount of resource
allocated to this work, perhaps by making the post fulltime, could increase the
number of houses brought back into occupation. The Group suggested that the
additional resource would generate more revenue for the Council than it would
cost. In response, the Service Manager for Neighbourhoods suggested that
rather than the Group proposing a full time post he would feedback that the
Group would like to see more empty homes dealt with in a quicker timescale
and that the Group understood this would need additional resourcing but would
need to be considered in the overall priorities of the council and resources
available and reminded members that this was a discretionary service.

The Chair summarised that the Group had reviewed and considered the
guestions set out in the report and had discussed the potential changes to the
law for empty home premiums.

The Chair highlighted that the Group asked the Council to consider its
resourcing for work on empty homes to review how it could increase the
number of properties that could be brought back into occupation more quickly.
The Chair asked for feedback to be provided to the Group.

It is RESOLVED that Communities Scrutiny Group considered and provided
feedback on the information provided to shape forthcoming revisions to the
Empty Homes Strategy.

Work Programme

Councillor Barney referred to the work programme item for Flight Paths

Page 5



scheduled for the January 2024 meeting and suggested that as this would
likely be a large item there would be merit in making this the only agenda item
for that meeting. He also suggested that Councillor A Brown be invited to
attend the meeting as he represented the Council on the Independent
Consultative Committee.

It was RESOLVED that the Group agreed the work programme for the year
2023 — 2024 as set out below, with the recommendation that the Corporate
Overview Group review the scheduling of the Community Facilities report in
January to see if it could be scheduled for a different meeting.

5 October 2023
e Social Housing Models

e Work Programme

18 January 2024
e Flight Paths

e Use of Community Facilities (TBC)
e Work Programme

21 March 2024
e Carbon Management Plan Update

e Streetwise In-Sourcing
e Work Programme

Action Table — 20 July 2023

Min No. | Action Officer Responsible

4 the Group asked the Council to | Service Manager for
consider its resourcing for work on | Neighbourhoods
empty homes to review how it could
increase the number of properties that
could be brought back into occupation
more quickly and to provide feedback
to the Group

The meeting closed at 8.21 pm.

CHAIR

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

Communities Scrutiny Group
Thursday, 5 October 2023

Review of Canal and River Trust Partnership Funding -

RUShC“ffe Grantham Canal Service Level Agreement
Borough Council

Report of the Director - Neighbourhoods
1. Purpose of report

1.1. This report is to inform Councillors as to how the Council is working with the
Canal and River Trust (CRT) with particular focus on the Access Agreement
between RBC and the CRT for the Grantham Canal. The agreement runs
from 1 April 2003 for 21 years, expiring on 31 March 2024.

1.2. A representative from the CRT will provide a presentation to the Group
summarising the current agreements with the Council and setting out their
future strategic ambitions beyond the expiry of the existing agreement in
2024.

1.3. Communities Scrutiny Group is requested to comment on the CRT
partnership’s delivery (Service Level Agreement - SLA) and make comment
on future service levels post 2024 so this can be fed into the 2024/25 budget
setting workshops.

2. Recommendation
It is RECOMMENDED that Communities Scrutiny Group:

(@) receive a summary presentation of the work that has been undertaken
by the Council in partnership with the Canal and River Trust

(b) make comment on the strategic ambitions of the CRT for any future
Service Level Agreement and the associated funding required for this
work.

3. Reasons for Recommendation

3.1. The CRT has achieved the outcomes set out within the Agreement and
continued access to the route remains open to all users.

3.2.  The current SLA ends in March 2024 and the Council needs to consider
whether to stop, reduce, maintain at existing levels, or increase the
commitments under the SLA with the CRT for future years and the length of
any such commitments.

Page 7



4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

Supporting Information

The CRT was formed in 2012 in the largest ever transfer of public assets to
the voluntary sector. The purpose of the Trust is to protect, manage and
improve the nation’s canals and river navigations for the millions who enjoy
them.

The CRT own the Grantham Canal and tow path and whilst it has a statutory
duty to maintain it as a “remainder waterway”, through partnership working
with the Council the parties have sought to improve it further for the purposes
of achieving a shared objective: to provide an 18km off-road, multi-user route
through the Borough for pedestrians, cyclists and users of manual and
motorised wheelchairs/scooters.

The Council has been working with the CRT (formerly British Waterways) on
Grantham Canal via various projects since 1992; upgrading and improving
accessibility to all users of the tow path, a route which runs from Gamston to
the edge of the Borough boundary with Melton, near Hickling.

The capital schemes over this period have included: widening the tow path to
two metres, resurfacing, bank protection, installing footbridges, ramp
improvements, bins, signage and motorbike barriers.

In 2003, an SLA between the parties secured provision of the future
maintenance of the route, with the CRT undertaking all works and the Council
providing a financial contribution at an agreed rate. The agreement also
provided a licence to the Council to grant open access to the route for all
users.

The partnership has enabled the significant improvement of the route to be
created, maintained and open to all users since 2003. It provides Rushcliffe
residents with a non-road alternative means of accessing the Borough and
provides a route for recreational use.

In 2022, the CRT delivered a project using £27,416 grant funding from the
UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) to undertake a series of reed clearance
works by removing excessive reed growth in a 13ft (four metre) wide channel
across the middle of the canal at sites in Kinoulton, Hickling, Cotgrave,
Gamston and Lady Bay. The channel provided clear water, for fish,
dragonflies and other aquatic plants as well as improving water flow.

Summary of the Partnership Agreement

4.8.

Under the terms of the Partnership Agreement, the CRT will:

e Give Rushcliffe Borough Council licence to use the multi-user path for
recreational purposes  for all pedestrians, cyclists, and
wheelchair/motorised mobility scooter users

e Maintain the surfaced multi-user path and verge, pedestrian and cycle
routes and timber pedestrian footbridge

Page 8



e Maintain the street furniture, including bins and motorcycle barriers.

Achievements and Outcomes of the Partnership

4.9.

4.10.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

6.1.

6.1.1.

6.1.2.

A representative from the CRT will provide a presentation detailing the work
they have undertaken in maintaining the accessible route along Grantham
Canal, but the agreement is largely focussed on towpath management and
hedge management (Background paper for inspection).

A representative from the CRT will provide detail in the presentation of a
range of options; these being the option not to renew the agreement and the
implications of this, renewal at the current service level of hedge and towpath
management (status quo) or an enhanced service level agreement to include
a programme of working such as reed management, operational management
support, wellbeing activities and a programme of education and events
targeting local school pupils.

Risk and Uncertainties

The current agreement ends in March 2024 and the Council is reviewing the
current agreement and seeking comments regarding any potential new
agreement beyond 2024.

Whilst there is budget in place for the agreement, due to the current climate of
increasing costs and inflation there is a risk going forward the cost of this
service could increase, which could cause pressure on budgets or negatively
impact quality of service provided. As part of any review, a prioritisation of
objectives and outcomes should be undertaken prior to extension or
acceptance.

The CRT have also provided an estimate for culvert repairs and lock
improvement, but these have been costed separately as distinct projects
should the Council wish to pursue these options.

Implications
Financial Implications

The payment to British Waterways in 2003 was for £16,704 and the existing
agreement allows for an annual uplift in accordance with civil engineering
indices. In 2022/23 the payment to CRT was £45,169.82 and is currently
contained within the medium-term financial strategy (MTFS).

Should the Council resolve to enter a future agreement it should follow the
Consumer Prices Index (CPI) and not civil engineering indices to be in line
with council policy, in addition the length of any new agreement should not
exceed 5 years in line with the MTFS and should include the option of a break
clause for either party.

Page 9



6.1.3.

6.2.

6.2.1.

6.3.

6.3.1.

6.3.2.

6.4.

6.4.1.

6.5.

6.5.1.

The Council’s is currently preparing the draft MTFS for 2024/25 to 2028/29.
Any enhancements to the CRT partnership and SLA would result in a budget
pressure and should therefore be considered in the context of budget setting
and the wider economic environment.

Legal Implications

The Agreement with CRT was established and reviewed with the Council’s
Legal Services team and expires in March 2024.

Equalities Implications

Restriction free access to recreation green and blue spaces is promoted to all
residents and can help to address issues relating to equality, diversity, mental
and physical health, and wellbeing. Recent research from the King’'s College
London, Norman Projects and J & L Gibbons fount that being by water left
people feeling happier and healthier, and that this connection was stronger
than time spent in an environment that is characterised by only green space.

Andrea Mechelli, Professor of early intervention in mental health at King's
College, stated that Canals and rivers contain not only water but also an
abundance of trees and plants, which means their capacity to improve mental
wellbeing is likely to be due to the multiple benefits associated with both green
and blue spaces. "Canals and rivers also provide homes to a range of wildlife,
and we know from other research that there is a positive association between
encountering wildlife and mental wellbeing. "Taken collectively, these findings
provide an evidence base for what we intuitively thought about water and
wellbeing and support the proposal that visits to canals and rivers could
become part of social prescribing schemes, playing a role in supporting
mental health."

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act Implications

The partnership has worked to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour and in
particular the restriction of motorised vehicles on the tow path.

Biodiversity Net Gain Implications

The Grantham Canal is a listed green and blue infrastructure site, identified in
the Greater Nottingham Blue and Green Infrastructure Strategy January 2022,
which has biodiversity value and will be a key site for offsite biodiversity net
gain enhancement when the duty comes into effect. It has also been identified
in the Rushcliffe Core Strategy for land East of Gamston/North of Tollerton
strategic development site for an enhanced green corridor for biodiversity
enhancements.

Page 10



7. Corporate Priorities

The Environment

The access agreement and budget to support delivery, are all
designed to provide wellbeing services, through walking and
cycling opportunities, access to green and blue space and
safeguard the natural environment through improved
sustainable management and to support our carbon reduction
objectives

Quiality of Life

Access to green and blue spaces contributes to improvements
in public health for example through; walking and cycling
opportunities, improved nature conservation and biodiversity,
and by sequestration of carbon; all of which have a profound
influence on quality of life.

Efficient Services

On-going management of access agreements ensures that
they can be updated and adapted to reflect our corporate
priorities and ensure prudent financial management

Sustainable The Grantham Canal is a green lung which snakes it way

Growth throughout the Borough and should be protected as the
Borough develops to ensure sustainable growth. The canal is
adjacent to the new proposed development at Tollerton and
development in Cotgrave.

8. Recommendations

It is RECOMMENDED that Communities Scrutiny Group:

(a) receive a summary presentation of the work that has been undertaken by
the Council in partnership with the Canal and River Trust

(b) make comment on the strategic ambitions of the CRT for any future
Service Level Agreement and the associated funding required for this

work.

For more information contact: Dave Banks

Director of Neighbourhoods
Tel: 0115 9148438
dbanks@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Background papers Available for | Agreement between Rushcliffe Borough Council

Inspection:

and Canal and River Trust 2003

List of appendices (if any): Scrutiny Matrix

British Waterways Board Service Level
Agreement

Page 11



mailto:dbanks@rushcliffe.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Rushcliffe Borough Council — Scrutiny Matrix

Officer Request for Scrutiny

Darryl Burch — Service Manager Neighbourhoods

Proposed topic of scrutiny ... Review of Canal and Rivers Trust Partnership
Funding

| would like to understand ... (key The Access Agreement between Rushcliffe

lines of enquiry) Borough Council and the Canal and Rivers Trust
(CRT) for the Grantham Canal is due to expire in
2024.

On 21 July 2022 the Communities Scrutiny Group
received a presentation from the CRT regarding
performance of the SLA. The Group requested that
the item was brought back to scrutiny to enable
them to provide comments and help share any
future SLA agreement once the current
arrangements come to an end.

Councillors are, therefore, asked to review
performance for the previous monitoring period
and make comments on future SLA arrangements
and future funding commitments which can be
recommend to Cabinet for approval once the
current arrangements come to an end.

The Government has recently announced a long-
term funding settlement for the CRT for the period
from 2027 to 2037, to follow on from the current
grant agreement. The amount awarded
represents a reduction nationally in its funding of
over £300 million in real terms over the ten-year
period.

It represents almost a halving of real-terms public
funding for canals in the ten years from 2027
compared with recent years.

The Grantham Canal links to the Council’s
Corporate Strategy as canals are shown to deliver
substantial benefits to the economy, to community

Page 13



health and wellbeing, and to nature and
biodiversity.

| think this topic should be Poor Performance ldentified

scrutinised because ... v | Change in Legislation or Local Policy

Resident Concern or Interest

(please tick) Cabinet Recommendation

v Links to the Corporate Strategy

Other

(Please state)

Officer Consideration of Request for Scrutiny

Officer Feedback (please tick)

- Issue already being addressed x Issue of a complaint investigation

- Issue has already been considered | ,

in the last 2 years? Issue is a staffing matter

There is an alternative way of dealing

) . X . .
Issue is a legal matter with the issue

Is there sufficient capacity ...

- Scrutiny Work Programme? v
- Officer Resources? v
Recommendation Schedule for Scrutiny

Consideration of Request for Scrutiny at COG

Public Involvement / engagement?

Expert withesses?

Portfolio holder?

Lead Officer? Derek Hayden

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny
and Scrutiny Group

October 2023 for Communities Scrutiny Group

Page 14




o<,
DATED 4 ' L) U/V) 2003

y N

BRITISH WATERWAYS BOARD

and

RUSHCLIFFE BOROUGH COUNCIL

L

LICENCE

To carry out construction of Muiti-User Path with
access improvements adjoining the Grantham Canal between
Lady Bay Bridge Nottingham and The Smite Aqueduct Nottingham

Nigel { Johnson
Legal Director _
BRITISH WATERWAYS BOARD
Willow Grange
Church Road
Watford
WD17 4QA

JOH/CX229Licence

Palge 15




SR e

FEN A

st e e I A P R TS 5 A 5 1 A i

ho

THIS LICENCE is made the 4 day of()(,}p)/. Two Thousand and Three BETWEEN
BRITISH WATERWAYS BOARD whose principal office Is situate at Willow Grange
Church Road Watford Hertfordshire WD17 40QA (hereinafter called “the Board”) of
the one part and RUSHCLIFFE BOROUGH COUNCIL of Civic Centre, Pavilion Road,

West Bridgeford, Nottingham NG2 5FE. (hereinafter called “the Council”) of the other

e

part

WHEREAS

(i) The Council wish to carry out the construction of a Multi-User Path between
Lady Bay Bridge Nottingham Ordnance Survey No SK587383 and Smite,
Aquéduct Ordnance Survey No SK715295 in the County of Nottinghamshire.

(iiy  The Board is (inter alia) the freehold owner of the Canal and the Towing Path
and has (inter alia) statutory powers to provide and enhance canal and
navigation facilities for users of its waterways.

(iiiy  The Council and the Board have agreed subject to the terms set out in this
Licence to undertake a programme of works to improve the Towing Path and

access points as a multi-user recreational facility as set out in Schedule 1
hereto (“the Works”).

IT IS HEREBY AGREED as follows:
1. Definitions

In this Licence the following words and expressions shall have the meanings set out

alongside those words and expressions: -

“the Plans” The plans annexed hereto and referred to in
Appendix 1 to Schedule 1.

Page 216



O B

T R BT R S S, TRt W By e WP % W 6% T

“the Canal”

“Multi-User Path”

“the Licence”

“the Towing Path”

Commencement and Term

Grantham Canal which is for the purpose of identification
only is shown included within the green lines on the Plans
A surfaced path exiending to a depth of 200mm to be
constructed on the towing path adjoining the Canal
between Lady Bay Bridge Nottingham Ordnance Survey
number SK587383 and Smite Aqueduct Ordnance Survey
number SK715295 for recreational use as a pedestrian
route a recreational cycleway and where reasonably
practicable to allow for diSabIed access.

.

Such licence as is granted by virtue of clause 3 below.

That part of the Board's property which comprises both
the towing path and adjoining land and is for the purpose of
identification only shown included between green lines on
the Plans and which expression shall include the Multi-User
Path where constructed over the same and reference to the
Towing Path shall include any part of it.

This Licence and Authority will come into force on the First day of April 2003 and will
be for a period of 21 years from the date thereof.

Grant of Licence

3.1.1 In consideration of the agreements an the part of the Council and the conditions
hereinafter contained the Board so far as they can and lawfully may hereby

grant to the Council licence and authority for: -

£

3.1.2 Use of the surfaced area of Multi-User Path for recreational use as a pedestrian
route by able bodied and disabled persons including use of approved powered
wheelchairs but ail subject to the natural gradients of the Towing Path where in
the reasonable opinion of the Board they cannot be re-graded to those

recommended for disabled use,

Page 17




T R R, T T T IR T

wraran

L

e

T R <R TR

3.1.3 Use of the surfaced area of Multi-User Path for the passage of pedal bicycles for

recreational and rural transport purposes only PROVIDED THAT and for the
avoidance of doubt such use shall exclude cycle racing or organised cycle
events unless otherwise first agreed in writing between the Board and the

Council
Permissions

The use of the Multi-User Path under this Licence is permissive only and such
use shall not be deemed to be or become public rights of way.

Access Points

The Board shall determine and provide from time to time access points (the
jocation of which shall be entirely at the Board’s discretion) to the Towing Path
for personé using the Towing Path under this Licence.

Rights Reserved

The Board expressly reserves the right at all times to: -

6.1 use the Towing Path and carry out works thereon for all purposes but
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing the right of access
over and along the Towing Path and any part of it with or without vehicles

and authorising all such others to do so.

6.2 -grant other licences or agreements for the use of the Towing Path
PROVIDED THAT such licences or agreements do not substantially or
permanently interfere with the exercisk‘e of the Licence

6.3 carry out its powers and duties including the right to obstruct or close
the Towing Path whenever required for the purposes of navigation,
engineering and maintenance operations in connection with authorised
uses of the Canal and Towing Path or for the installation by the Board or
by others of apparatus beneath the surface of the Canal and Towing Path
including without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing

telecommunications apparatus and cables.

Page i8



2 AT kg g

T

PURERLT T L T

D A T R A P BTy T I W, TS

LT AT T e

6.4

to close and divert the Towing Path for such period or periods of time as
the Board, acting reasonably, shall at its discretion require upon the
happening of any occurrence which makes continued use of the Towing

Path unsafe.

7 Towing Path Works

7.1

7.2

Where the Board intends to obstruct close or divert the Towing Path or
authorise its obstruction closure or diversion or remove any of the Works
for any reason it shall first give written notice to the Council (save in case
of emergency) and shail use its reasonablg endeavours to consult with
the Council to minimise any disruption which may be caused by such
obstruction closure or diversion, and except where urgent action is
required to be undertaken by the Board, the Board shall give such notice
of such action as is reasonable in the circumstances.

If at any time the Board carries out or authorises works of whatever
nature to the Towing Path, (other than those authorised hereunder) it
shall so far as reasonably practical secure reinstatement of the Towing
Path to the condition in which it was before carrying out any such works.

ltems on Towing Path

The Council may at its own cost subject to the prior written approval of the
Board, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld and which may be subject

to conditions imposed by the Board: -

8.1 erect and maintain on the s‘rowing Path notices, seats, litter
receptacles, lifebuoys and stands, stiles, motorcycle barriers and
access points additional to those within the Works and

8.2 plant and cultivate appropriate parts of the Towing Path.

5
Page 19



YN PRA TR AR e AT T

s

R T TR el T Ty L G ¥ P G T D

0 s Rl S RSB T

10.

11.

12

‘Title to ltems

Title in such items as may be fixed on the Towing Path by virtue of Clause 8
shall remain with the Council who shall be responsible for their maintenance,
renewal and repair and (unless the Board otherwise agree) shall be removed by
the Council on or before the termination of this Licence and any damage done

made good to the reasonable satisfaction of the Board.

Alterations -
Subject to the provisions of 8 the Council shall not cause or permit to be made
any alteration in the position or structure or otherwise of the Works without the

prior written consent of the Board

Rights of Support

Save for the maintenance works referred to in Schedule 5 nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to give to the Council a right of lateral or subjacent
support for the Works or render the Board liable for any damage which may
happen to the same

The Works

12.1 The Council and the Board shall carry out or pay all, (or a proportion) of
the costs of the Works set out in Schedule 1 (including works of
maintenance) as has been agreed between the parties and as provided
for in sub-clauses 12.2 to 12.4 inclusive and sub-clauses 15.1, 15.2 and
15.4. =

12.2 The Board shall undertake to carry out that part of the Works which are
set out in schedule 2 which include the construction of a granular
surfaced towpath between Cotgrave Road and Hollygate Lane near
Cotgrave.

Page %0



B et e T . o S TS (3 2T I R L T M L PONTRINE AT % 0 IR e TR S e i m

e T T g —

13

14

12.3

12.4

The Council shall undertake to carry out that part of the Works which are

set out in schedule 3 at its own costs.

The Board shall undertake to carry out that part of Works set out in

schedule 4 at its own cost.

Cycling Code

131

13.2

The Council shall erect and maintain at its own cost notices as specified
by the Board to inforg__'l users of the Towing Path of the Board’s Code for
Cyclists and other information relating to cycling on the Board's towing

paths.

The Licence shall be subject to the pellson or persons using the Towing
Path complying in all respects with any bye-laws and rules of conduct for
the time being in force including but without prejudice to the generality
of the foregbing cyclists having a cycling permit from the Board (whether
or not it is free) if required by the Board PROVIDED THAT the Board in
its absolute discretion shall be entitled to restrict or prevent the use of
the Towing Path by any person who has contravened the provision of

such bye-laws or rules of conduct.

Assighment

14.1

14,2

14.3

Except as provided in Clause 14.2 the Council shall not assign sub-
licence or otherwise part with the benefit of this Licence.

The Council shall not assign the whole of this Licence without the
previous written consent of the Board (such consent not to be

unreasonably withheld)

The Council shall procure that prior to any assignment the assignee
enters into a written agreement with the Board to perform and observe
all the agreements and conditions on the Council's part contained in this

licence

7
Page 21



s T e

TR .m‘.mﬂﬂmmmm"’!hﬂﬂ' L e R

RS

15. Maintenance

15.1

15.2

1563

15.4

For the duration of this licence the Board shall undertake the

maintenance works set out in Schedule 5.

For the duration of this licence the Council shall undertake the
maintenance works set out in Schedule 6 but such works will ‘be
implemented on behalf of the Council by the Board. In consideration of
the same the Council will make an annual payment of £928.00 plus
value added tax per kilometre of that part of the Multi-User Path referred
to in paragraph 1 of Schedule 6 such annual payment to be updated
annually based on the monthly bulletin of indices dated May 2002 (civil
engineering formuia Index no.l) published by the Department of the
Environment. The Board will submit to the Council an invoice for the
amount due for payment on 30th - September in -each year and the
Council shall pay the amount due to the Board within 28 days of the date
of the invoice. |f the Board fails to implement the maintenance works in
so far as they relate to maintaining the Multi User Path in a safe
condition and in good repair commensurate with its use the Council shall
be entitled to give the Board notice specifying the work to be done. If the
Board fails to respond to the notice within 28 days of it being served on
the Board the Council shall be entitled to carry out such works and
recover the reasonable costs of so doing from the Board.

If it becomes impossible to make the calculation required in clause 15.2,
then the updated payment may be agreed ‘at any time between thé
parties or, in the absence of agreement, shall be determined by a single
arbitrator pursuant to Clause 15, who shall ascertain what would have -
been the up-dated annual payment?‘based on the monthly bulletin of
indices mentioned in Clause 15, had it continued on the same basis.

For the duration of this licence the Council and the Board shall jointly
undertake the maintenance works set out in schedule 7.

Page $2



T =S, 10 S~ W XM BN 7 5 - oy

16.

17.

18.

15.5 If the Council fails to carry out any of its obligations under this Licence
the Board shall give the Council written notice of default specifying the

work to be done,

15.6 If the Council shall fail to respond to such a notice of default stated at
15.5 above within twenty-eight days of it being served on the Council the
Board shall be at liberty to carry out the works described in the notice of
default and recover the costs forthwith of so doing from the Council.

15.7 K the Board fails to carry out its obligations under 15.1 the Council shall
give written notice of default specifying the work to be done

Interference with Navigation

The Council shall not do or permit to be done anything which may cause any

interference with navigation upon the Canal

Preservation of Rights

17.1 The Council shall endeavour to ensure that the exercise of the Licence
does not cause any nuisance to or interference with the Board or its

licensees

17.2  The Licence shall be without prejudice to any existing rights of way over
and along the Towing Path which may be shown to have been
established prior to the execution of this Licence.

Arbitration

In the event that any dispute or difference“arises between the Board and the
Council as to the construction of this Licence or otherwise in respect of the
carrying on of the same into effect the matter shall be referred to the arbitration
of a single arbitrator to. be agreed between the Board and the Council or in
default of agreement to be appointed by the President for the time being of the
Institution of Civil Engineers in accordance with the provisions of the Arbitration
Act 1996 or any statutory modification or re-enactment of it for the time being

in force,

9
Page 23



T BT AR e -

e T LN T oy T e A S A L L, e TR T T

19.

20.

21.

22.

Rights and Duties Reserved

‘Nothing in this Licence shall prejudice or fetter the proper exercise of any

function or duty or power of the Council or the Board or the officers of either.

Special Act or Order

Nothing herein contained _Shall prejudice or affect any provision for the
protection of the Board or included in any Special Act or Order

Works by Council

The Council shall comply with the Board's “Code of Practice for Works affecting
British Waterways” (including any relevant ‘Special  Requirements’
supplemental to the Code and any relevant appendices from time to time in
force) in respect of any works carried out by the Council under this Licence.

Indemnity

22.1 The Council shall obtain sufficient public liability insurance cover and
will indemnify the Board against all costs claims demands and damages
of whatever nature occurring (except where caused by the negligence of
the Board or their servants or agents) through the use of the Towing Path
(including use by members of the public) and the exercise of the Council

of its licence and authority under this licence.

22.2 The Council will make all necessary. arrangements with and satisfy all
claims by the owners, or occupiers of land adjoining the Towing Path and
any other person who may be affected by this Licence and fully and
effectually indemnify the Board from and against any such claims by

such persons

22.3 The Board hereby indemnifies the Council against any cost claims
demand or damage arising out of or in connection with the exercise by

Page 5’4



23.

25,

the Board of any of its functions under this Licence (except where caused

by the negligence of the Council its contractors servants or agents).

Footbridge and Alteration

If and so often as the Board shall for the purpose of their undertaking require
the position of the footbridges referred to in paragraphs 2 and 3 of Schedule 3
or any ]:iart thereof to be altered or the said footbridges removed entirely the
Council shall at its own expense under the supervision and to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Board's engineer and in accordance with plans details and
specifications previously appfoved in writing by the Board's engineer remove or
alter the said footbridges or such part thereof as required and shall (except
where the same is being removed entirely from the waterway) replace or
reconstruct the same in such other position as notified to the Council and the
provisions of this licence shall apply to such removal alteration or replacement
and to the said footbridges as removed altered or replaced as the case may be.

Plans

Works to be carried out between the Lay Lady Bridge and Gamston Bridge
section referred to in Schedule 1 which have not been indicated on the Plans
and any additional works agreed between the parties shall upon the completion
of such works be indicated on ‘as built’ pians and shall form part of a
supplemental agreement to be entered into between the parties which shall
incorporate such additional agreed works within the terms of the Licence.

Notices

Any notice which under the provisions of this"Licence. is to be given to the Board
shall be deemed effectively served if addressed to the Board and served ori the
Waterway Manager, Sawley Marina, Sawley, Nottinghamshire NG10 3AE, or
such other person as the Board may from time to time designate and any notice
in writing that is to be given by the Board to the Council shall be deemed
effectively served if sent through the post in a registered or recorded delivery
letter addressed to the Council at its |ast known address.

11
Page 25



Lol T I WS AT, R B B NS T T e

ek e

T PN

26.

Interpretation

26.1

26.2

26.3

26.4

In this licence if any party at any time comprises 2 or more persons the
obligations of that party are to the joint and several obligations of those

persons.

Words in one gender include all other genders. Words in the singular
include the plural and vice versa and any reference to a person includes
reference to a Company or Authority Board Department or other body.
The clause headings do not form part of this Licence and are not to be
taken into account for the purposes of its constructural interpretation

Reference to a clause without furthér designation is to be construed as a
reference to the clause of this licence so numbered.

IN WITNESS whereof the duly authorised representatives of the parties have signed

this Licence on the day and year first written above.

THE PLANS ANNEXED — Appendix to Schedule 1

The Plans including details of the Board’s canal and towpath land ownership between
Lady Bay Bridge and Smite Aqueduct. Nottinghamshire within the Rushcliffe Borough
boundaries Ref SK 587383 and SK 715295.

1.1

SCHEDULE 1
The Works =

Canalside and Towpath and access Improvements between Lady Bay
Bridge Nottingham and Smite Aqueduct.

The works as identified on the Plans.

Canalside granular surfaced Multi-User Towpath improvements between
Lady Bay Bridge Nottingham and The Smite Aqueduct.

Page26



1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

Street furniture, litter and dog fouling bins and Anti Motorcycle barriers
at locations indicated on the Plans.

Tarmac surfaced access improvements at including connection between
the public highway and The Board's towpath at locations indicated on

the Plans.

Pedestrian and cycle route signing at locations to be agreed on site by
the Council and the Beard.

Timber pedestrian footbridge crossing the Canal at Gamston.

Ramp improvements and revetment support at Irish Jacks and Blue Hills
Briclges.

Environmental works inciuding hedge management and additional hedge
planting Lady Bay Bridge to Gamston.

Vegetation clearance from the Canal bed Cropwel! Bishop.

Fencing to the off-side of the Canal off side between Hog Hill Swing
Bridge and Cropwell Roving Bridge.

Pedestrian footbridge with handrali Lock 10 (upstream of A46 Road) and

.granular surface of car parking area.

Waterway wall repairs Cropwell Roving Bridge.

£

Towpath surface works, hedge planting and other access improvements
between Cotgrave Road and Hollygate Lane referred to within the
Cotgrave SRB scheme.

Bank protection works as required to enable the construction of a
granular towpath wherever reasonably practical 2m wide.

Page 27



Tarm

SCHEDULE 2

The works to be undertaken by the Board

1.

10

Bank protection works as required to enable the construction of a

granular towpath wherever reasonably practical 2m wide.

Towpath construction between Lady Bay Nottingham and Cotgrave Road
Nottinghamshire. Hollygate Lane to Smite Aqueduct Nottinghamshire.

Street furniture, litter and dog fouling bins and Anti Motorcycle barriers
at locations indicated on the Plans.

Tarmac surfaced access improvements at including connection between
the public highway and the Towing Path at locations indicated on the
Plans.

Ramp improvements and revetment support at Irish Jacks and Blue Hills
Bridges.

Environmental works including hedge management and additional hedge
planting L.ady Bay Bridge to Gamston,

Vegetation clearance from the canal bed-upstream upstream of Cropwell
Roving Bridge.

Pedestrian footbridge with handrail Lock 10 (upstream of A46 Road) and
granular surface of car parking area.

Waterway wall repairs with metal handrail upstream of Cropwell Roving

‘Bridge.

Towpath surface works, hedge planting and other access improvements
between Cotgrave Road and Hollygate Lane referred to within the
Cotgrave SRB scheme,

Page'28



TR RS e

[ W —— R KT S W Ly

SCHEDULE 3

The works to be undertaken by the Council.
1. Environmental and hedge management scheme Lady Bay length.

2. Timber footbridge crossing Grantham Canal near supermarket at Gamston and
subject to raising bridge to navigation height if canal is restored for navigation.

3. The pedestrian footbridge (schgdule 1:10) crossing lock 10 upstream of A46 to be
raised to navigational height if the canal is restored to navigation.

SCHEDULE 4
The works to be undertaken by the Board

1. ‘The construction of a granular multi-user footpath included within the Cotgrave
SRB Scheme.

2 Fencing to the off-side of the canal off side between Hog Hill Swing Bridge and
Cropwell Roving Bridge.

SCHEDULE 5

The Maintenance Works to be undertaken by the Board

3, The foundations of the Towing Path.

2. Such waterway walls as may separate the Towing Path from the navigation.

3 The hedgerow to the rear of the Towing Path.

4 Fencing to canal off side between Hog Hill Swing Bridge and Cropwell Roving
Bridge.

Pagé 29



G e e

T AR M W YO R

(Gotosin risomutr arma) | {

SCHEDULE &

The Maintenance Works to be undertaken by the Councit

1~ The continued maintenance of the surfaced Multi-User path and adjoining verge
not more than lmetre to each side of the Multi-User path between ordnance
survey reference nos. SK 587383 and SK 715295.

2 The maintenance of pedestrian and cycle route signs and litter and dog fouling
bins on the Multi-User Path,,

3 The maintenance of the Timber pedestrian Footbridge crossing the Grantham

canal near the supermarket site at Gamston.
SCHEDULE 7
The maintenance works to be undertaken jointly by the Council and the Beard.

1. Tarmac surfaced access connections between the highway and towpath at

various locations as marked on schedule 1.

2. Anti Motorcycle barriers at locations marked on schedule 1. Metal handrails

upstream of Cropwell Roving Bridge
3. Handrail and revetment to support ramp and access improvements.

4, Metai footbridge and car park improvements Lock 10.

T (otumises

Signed by L .........................
For and on behalf of Rushcliffe BG'rEEl-g-_Councn

Page 50



"TG0Z VLZTIS ¥ M8 SIUIDIZICK I[MD 1O LGNSO 0) PRE| ABLU [ 18 KB AdG) LIS EBALIUN LORONPOICES PasUaLInEUN “IyBuAdcn e @ - A
8140 AIBuONRIS S,A15alW 19K J0 13j[ouluen Wi JB UOISSILUNY byy yus Bujddru fsaing 33URURIQ IY) W0 pronposday CO.G@N_ aN

Bujmonyy Aq pareasn ;
2002/£0/10 212@ sfemiaepp ysiug |

(s T UoNv3g |eues) weyueax Sl
00T G0 o

ST Y

.

.BS? T
LAV — T T 7 :_._

I

. Alepunog 1 aunoysny D
diysreump sAemisieps ysoug D
abpug o

i

o e G ]

o S 8BPLUGI00d AENd) S Ao A ©

e s, Yo

9P MBS BUe | -MOPES
AR S TSRS

, 98pug Aeg ABZ \
. . pug =]

T 5
qeEsE 0G3estT 0085y ao9sst _nammmw 0obESY Q0EBEY

T T :
0018561 +GO0ASE 4



1002 'vzZ11CTY Ma 'SBupsgsasd [ 10 Uolnapsaid 0] pes; ARw PUR jyBuidog umodd SSBULJLI UCHANPoIdas pasiroymRUM TBNADOD UMD @ G
w0 Kipvonmg s KEalew Jay 10 180D ) 10 VoIssiuIad ayy yyw Buiddew faAing soueunag Ay wal) peanpordsy :O_ Qm WZ

uymony Aq pajesid sAemiajepp ysnug
Z00Z/€0/10 8ieq

i Z U0I}93S |eue) Weyjuels) =

1 00L65Y 00965% DOSESY O0I6ST . 00065Y —commme
[l y

T 1 | - 1 1 1 1 I H A~ Y ™
Alepunog v agiloysny _H_

diyssaump sAenusieps usaLg _H_
ofipig e

L )

puasa

=
e
I B
3
— S o
sBpunlocd prciaBpud
i} i u...___wF.. '
n G
Pt gy i _
oy : :
a7 T
e

28p1E 20015 [PuEly
g ST o = ©
Tt | % A
- =i I N2 g8
N NN
J o PN N
= 4 W
=l ; AN
. {] ..- N o w
T . n i i 4 I/
N ex] LT, . I m
[ 2 | b > i = ] m 4 A m
L1 ﬂu m [ : AR
& - . - la 8| L =
M f
- N . ’
Yo | s
By 4
v 2 i = _ ,
= - e 4 = m
: 5 “,,h...,"w i = i 3 2
1 U [/
= O L1 . "
3 ]
L] : Mw o
— cozsee S0030p ‘ooves? oOE6SY 00265+




A 5o IAE g el Eanmm U UBSREG 1) Pae HoqIeTn - I -
.m:___;oﬁ.m_ hn— pajesiq ! 93 R J0 Uomsired sy yy: Fuiddewy ABng Bsueup.q sy wioy pnpodey _._D_Dmm an ; “
2002/£0/10 sieq ¢

MM
oom_ﬂ% - € Uondag Jeue) weyueary .

m\oo.o..: a0z08% -
L ol Aty Y — . _aaummv D065
’iv'ff 7 AN “—"IIB 1 TF . : 1
& ) _ : / : =
,ﬂ%.w\’gﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂw i : AT Tk | NP Aiepunog v ayyoysny [
i \’ .Q‘ o . ; WA B . 5o, i diys1sumo skemisien yspug D
A . | ' , obpug o

puageq

=
(-1 T
=i

P

AR
. - i
o : A BRI a2 ALY M
- geaas y
]

_— e S

tEE g T g P L ﬁ

|l
L]
0094e8

T
COBE v




LUUG FLELLY IV M Smulpomsums [1nju A0 Uuh LU U} Pl el pUR JUAUAIDY WABLL SEOUMIML WARDNPOKIRI PESLIGINEUT JHBLIATO LWWOK) @

\ 8310 Aeuer)s & AsalRy SBH jo 8|S Sy} O UOESIULIRD 2y yym Surideul AMUNG IURURIQ M o) peanposiay :O_BQN_ dN “ “_
m:m_%mwmmoﬁ% M””_.o SAemliajem :.w.__.-_m._m “
0052 { uol}oag |eue) weyjueiy) ==
_n_omom.vi — / J!\ i e Loy i posoe P oitd i JDatngw il - s :

faepunog v aoysny [ | I3
\ Y diusisumg skemisem ysiug [ ]
afpug @ T

puadaq

T T
Q0L09% 00909t



Bulmosy Aq pajeats
<002/£0/10 8jeq

1002 vzt TEw ma

d AL 1. by

d a} pea) Aew pue ENtdos umbug saBuuU) LORANPCIdes pespoLinEU WBIAIoD LoD @
SO AIRUOHRIG 8 _aﬁm_us_ Ry 3 ,.n__EEou ) Ja LoiEs1L3d BY) s Suiddews AAung eaLRUELD Sy woly peanpoidsy

G UOI}93G |BURY) WRYuRIY)

uoiBay 3N

sAemiaiep usng
L= - o -ERNE

I TR e

005‘2'T Ou )
\\uﬂﬂ.ﬂL il i
oAt 0TS 0T0w OGEToY oz oGty GooTsY 00605 '
Q 0y
M\ . ,\\i :
i R e m
NN P
& /// ‘..\\ m
Ly
N ,
, : i
// 2 i
SS800E DELWIE} PUB 18141E¢ 8|2ANI010W-UE 5 \ ]
. i ; e3piig _._ote__o._. m. “ m
IR e - et o / ]
- ‘ ’?_ 3 % & e e N VI, /I: = “
i X
. N
3 £ e i
7 | i i
i i
i v & h e et ]
. i
s |
i
-} M " — |_.%,
N
MJ
_— EDI
28p|1g'Buimg s,omo7 |
1
i,
1 &
- ‘ S
o B
e R
]
1
B} Aiepunog w1 apiioysny _HU L&
diysieumg sABmIsiEAA UsnLg D
efpug o
puagaq
T T T T LI T | 1
T aostey 005 19w oov Ty ooEToy 0oz1gY ocatsy 00600 i




“100Z 'VLZTISTY ME SILIPE2ICI JiA1D JO UORNI250.0 0] PRR| ABL Pl JuB),Fgas umasd STBULI UORONPAXIE) PESLIOYINEUS) YWELADOD Unas) g
S ARAHRS § AISS[B HBH 10 HII0ALOD B) 0 UOISSILLSY ey s SUddew AaAng eauRURID B1) Woy pACAPRIDRY
Sunmon'y A¢q parealy

uotBey aN . i
shemiaiepmysiug !

RLUL 2%

- IXMUEE
1

:JUBHEE

IWDLB‘E.'

¢002/80/10 2eQ > 3 E 7] i
Uuoi}oe euen weyluee .ﬂlm: ”
g 002 tot2ay 000z9% FETo _— 0aTg #
__".ENW 7 7\ J 7 0525 005287 00VZ3  poEzaY 002z ; q { [ _ F | |
el 4 ‘ I — e Arepunog v aplioysny _ _ ;

COLLEE

002LEE

diysisumg sAeauslepa Usnig _U !

ofpug e

puagdaq
i

1 L]
QosR notzer




Bulpmon'y Aq pejealsy
2002/E0/T0 =1EQ

0os‘ct @
b)

1002 "YLZTTGTY MA_S3UIP##20L [[Al% 10 UENND9SD. o) Peel A6 PUE YgFuAdoo WO/ SIBUTII) oRoNpOIte] pas poqInaUr] 143 Ad0s Umois &
YO Leuonels s A1salBN J9H 10 19]]61300 4] J0 LersunRd sy) Yy SuTdRW ABANS 93URUPIQ Bu) Wol) pronposdey —.-O_mﬂm N

sfemialep Ysig
[ U0I}29§ |eue) welyjuelr) _

—c—

< DOVOEE

« - GOS9EE

O0G9EE

. OOBREE

[174-11:4

DOBIEE

ST e e — ittt =T,

O0LEGY SE9 (s .
e e
O N //«,\ — fiepunog v agnoyshy D .“
. @/ = diysisumg sAemisiep) yspug D _m
e AN .x, R, - : S ebpug o a
- puagay M

- _Ap-ag»e_z??(.—_ A

i T
00FEST 002E9y .Do_..moq




Buimon-y Aq pajessn
200Z/80/T0 @1ed

‘1002 ‘VZZIIEY ME "sBuipasacsd (s Jo upanossoid o] pea) A pue JyBuddes umarg seElL endnpodes pespouneur WRuAdes uwoID &
o)) KIRuone;s s, A1selR iy JTH 10 19))04)U07) BLY JO UDIESILLIGD Ay yyyw Surddiw FAINg SOURUPIQ 3yl WoJ) paanpaiday

uocibBey mm,_
sfemialep ysnig

g Uo1}29S |Rue) Weyjue.s)

e .

00521

Wi

jif
COEYIY 0029 . _ccmmme _gwmg _ucn. i
] 1 3

ANY

£

Aigpunog v agliaysny D m
diysIoumO SABMISIEN USHLG D
ebpug e !

puagan i

\ £
2 : o | 3
-
A\
W
W _
\ |
// FAl
\
) L
\
N\
N
\
d
e\ §
W
)
A
A\
’ ]
: "y 4 h f. u' // M
VR rlnl..aﬁ“—ﬂfr . N j . /1. u
) R Gl T g A
X ,&W?E A\
T ! i

L) T L] L) L]
009ty [l oordp EFST GoZrar [alsde ey QDOrSte [Fle opiEar oLLESY



"T00Z "W4ZT15T M8 sTuipaaacyd v Jo ueiinawsosd o) pes) 48w puR JySideo uw] 5ol I @ i
B LBUONRIS 5, EelRYY JAH 10 18]j0sU0D Sy3 10 VoESIWIad By E_Susn_amEguuﬁ:.Eo an way too.._vn..nnz :O_mﬂm 4N ._ N
Butimog'y Aq pajeas m>m_s._o~u>> usnuy |
200Z/€0/10 21eq , S—7i w
6 U0I1199G |eue) weyjuey)
005°2'T : A._, i
00Z50Y cOTS9Y _ U0OSSY - o0Gvar < DOBYAY 00L¥aY [t BT E
L _t - N 1 i 1 I 1
hY A . \ 1 m
\ = M 'l
BpUNCg Y Soysny
/ “ Aoy D m
5 , dIySIBUMO SABMISIEAA LSHUE D
I , Wil ) ) obpug o |
| #
puagay _ m
da oy T —— N . a
/ e .k
/ LTl i
ol E- - [ SO - NIGTRPO N o T —— R _ SN - - - M . ,_mu
~ &
- Sl k]
- - . “ - o= v
P - //.\\\ & g ........!.I..I
v X3 ,%%w _ B o)
G2 y ~ .
N NN ~< ™
. - 0> R, W . p— 0 s e e e e e e Q
ol : ] daoy Borg (@)]
! ~ a
it o
N
y N
\ S
\ | // |
\ ~
L - U, S e ||
] ) \\ //
: |
.
3 M - \
\
N / .
T T A Y %, \ !
AEY [N f o a»w, ) #
Y 7 o 3\
. o \ . A ./ & \ -y
< AT 2 B, N ) ) S \ !
. i r o 2 - a_. Q% ! i
o 2 | \ Aw \
- i o) L T \
£ 2 . “ A\ o A\ _
S .‘_.\ .ﬁ N \ |
4 e \ !
Pk b Rl /\ // \
L e ¥ >~ \ ot
A s Budyy . 2 .././ .// . |
- N Neihe ~ ~
L e Y o - ~ ~.]
b #IN E. . -~ .a. e ./a—../
T . = 1 T _/ T = T
o0esay 00289% 1212 008¥9Y 00Lyay aogvar 0050 N




T0OZ Y2118 M "sBuipeeoosd |{AD Jo =oz:uu.qn__n. 0] P9 AW PUE 3y Bradoo umo.] Saujin UOGONEOId) pesuoLIneuq WBiAdo0 Umai], g
010 Aruoneig 5, Aselew 1o o 29)[0AUe) S} 0 UaSSIMUEd aun yyim Suiddew Aaang BauRupIQ 2y) woup peonpouday

uoiBey IN
shemialep ysiig

== eI T]

i
ik

Sunmony Aq peresid
2002/€0/10 3jed
iy 0T uo0I}93S jeue) weyjues
009¢:T i
068 \A/nv ? = 00959 201557 - n
d [ tr
\__\\.a\le/Urfl\v L ! 7T : LA\l W i U ]
g -4 C Alepunog v agyoysny _ _ w
! diysisume sABMISIEAA LSOU ;
! iy et TeM 4 u.m_umm
“ T.uwo.ro wDUCm ] : ._
] - H
| :
| :
| ;
- . .-i . - - - o a—
|
—-
_~ X3 = Ei:rwm_u_ummmwu__o_u
! = j
i. .“f !
| el . e
I
]
! 7
| - W
i %
! i
| i
I\ - - /=
oy \ .3
i \\%
s A %]
3 M Ny _%
p
T - - ),
i i oLAE * il
s 7 AL A \k
¥ - .
; = " SR p 'y
RN o 2k g o
_ & ., e : \%\%&nﬂf\n\ \\\\x
N 7 = : \mh.nmn..v\..uv\.wu\...uv . . -
7 e —
.ﬁ“ﬁ.. i : \ = - ol o = ’f — -— b -
I . Tag) - \ \ ;.\ - -
| "~ E] 8 g A
i o ! _._...__ur R “
= Ty 1 3 ]
TRy . e b T
/ _nOnmmf _gwmww 00559 _nawmov _QcNmm _coﬁmw.v _QUOmm.v




1002 YLZ1 1SV MB SBUIPARINC I1AR 40 UORNDSOAD ) PR2| AZU PUB JLlufdon umd:) SSEVLIU OGSNPOICRI PEBLICYINIUN TURMASOD UMOID & -
Su) Moy Aq peqeeis 220)0 ARUGLEYS 5, Arusizp J3H 0 JBIIIIUCD B O OIS ayy i Sur Aasing IPa0 By WinJy dny uoiBey aN “
2002/50/T0 %1€q shemiojem usiug
i TT uoi}dag jeue) weyjuelr) |
00S'¢C:T : _w_
4 . |
.Looooou\ \ 2 /iﬂl\ _Swmwv .883 ._snmw.. _§Be - _Smmuq _Snwmq ....__Emmq R _Soqu ) M
N o f f * A N . LY o
f }edmo) padeuns JB|NUEAL)
r\ \\ c._m o - )
4 ~n Ky m e
m 7 f © = ¥ 4
| —a S . 2 SO [, N R A = = ol N W
; % v A} -
m £
: [
Mvz s i
3 8 ,
i r/// L]
NN .
" ! SN o [
El I RS = "
3 m NS 8 Il
r.., - .f./lr'// ° ].N| S— L I V0, W SO _— R S __-
: N £
R ) I
N 8 _
N 2 !
./// m [ 4.I_
//// € I <t
a N N An ' |
m //// . i !
: £24010W-UY . NS S N ) i b
ns pJey g Jataed 3ok p—" X - T e ey b
sgea0e peoRUNs P el N : u
5 3
7 N 1]
~ i
N i1
N I
N |
RNy !
N L] §
- N 3
- N i
3 NN _
. N\ P N e e -
NN
SRS
N
O
RN
R
N
N
u s N
= N
- ..
N
N
&
NN /d h
Y
a
N ) Arepunog v agioysny [ |
N &
diyssoum shemmoyeps usnug D
m abpug e
pusga [
o —— ot ‘oosagy ‘cosaw ‘oovagy otesy [

T b e . . MOTCEmTreT, SO D) VAT N < a8,



‘1002 'vL2[1STY ME [1AL3 Jo o)y 0} PB2| AR PUR JyStifden UMG) SABULJUI UQJONPOodsy PISHOLANRUN JAACOD UnBi) &
FHHO ARUONRIS §,K159(RMN J9H |0 JRIIONUY W) )2 USSR sy) yiw Buldde Ahng @oURUP .Y B WU} FeINpOIdaY
Buymor)y £q pajeas)
Z00Z/E0/T0 =jeg
o ZT Uodas [eue) weyjues
0062t
p \AOJ
gy [ /{JVQ QUSL9V 00vL9% QOELOY Q02L9¥ 001257 GO0L8Y 00699
\ il I i A 1 I 7 i !
\ ¥/ .
VRN /
/4
w ey i
m ; TR ./ 4 A S . A B
' ‘ I [ : "
\\ i :
7, \ v k, i
17 & = afplig Buimg s,uuRW BNYSO[ — i . i
! e, — T T T
i 174 e T
g (74 ;
Mz m \\\ ' ."
-3 I : e e - - - R (e e e e — L S & .
i e S i
) / “, i
N/ a , “
i . / ot : ¥
H : /| \\ .@.M;O
i e/ b 0# .
: L/ /Mv :
: b/ Y , .
& : / & . A
a i & '/ & ’ ; N
= - _ - . N - v.-m. - = = R 047 — 4 e Gl SECTERIE T
< / &
X Yo ft I
N xb.u b/ DY q
——y - s U zw
N /./ X _-QQ u@ 174/ 7 e
N ® / (
2BpLg Sumg 85504 3 &, ung &
‘S ) \\vn\ w / Dr
_ Ly /
/ § !
114
m h -
L s B N Jra— _..\ {/ 2
—_ = l.Wrm - L] ﬁl y
3 M =3¢ — =
) B = A3plig s594
R ~Ts gy
G@r.w.y -~ ——i= 8
X —.“‘ vO..YOOv
7 %] & Ty JWA% =)
# |- ¥ R -1 Pagg
d , vk g - 2]
i -
K o . g £
a - - A et _ﬂ - a m ol - J
: e Arepunog v eyousny [ |
£ ek diysieumg sAemusiep ysoug
w ! 6 ! -
g | M U B L _.l.u
84 z\\\ NG C A = : ofpug e iF
V e [ !
L = un
%_ﬁ = Tt B puage
1\ WS i " hY
_Suame _onmnmq _gvuwo .comnw.v ,.SNBv .3:2. .aaonw._ _acmmwa .833 .Snrw«




Buymonry Aq paressy
€002/€0/10 3eg

00S'z'T

1002 VLLLLE IV MH  3aUIReiie [1A12 JO LOWNIRGOK Wy e Ml HUE JUBLIAMGD LML SWabiuquy Ul IWIUL, PISLIOYINRY| | Wapmuiuy umus) @
- SO £ reuoie;; B,ASeIRIN 14 J0 J8)10.1L09 Y] KO LOISSIURD sy} 1y Buiddew KBS 30URLRG Al wos paonposdely

€T U0I1}93S |eue) WeRYjueIL)

SARMIRIBM USpLg

[ o= -~

uoiBey 3N |1
i
|
i

006257 ﬂoﬂkmf

.n_On...we

Kepunog v syijoysny D
diysieumo skemusjep ysiiug D

abpug o
puafa

Page 43

._ ; Ry
e -~ RN\
B ,-: 4 e BUIME 1IH ol f
A - . oy )
e / ........
3 - . - \ .
VAL [
iy 1 T A, i f
1 1 -~ ] n
L Ll s ”
: = 1
FI BT Y,
lnn -y N [ H
i P 3 . K
C . b nfoup 5o
o y Bin
k! [ naiz \
- " 3 I
1 LIJE [] T ) L)
_Swumv -aqu.w.. g—. 006291 008L9y 00LL8% 00g9:9y - 005459% Q0o

1
L 000G




[ 002 'VLZUISIV M8 "s3ulpo200'd |'AR 40 uoynoescd o) PRT] ARLU PUR JyT)ridos umor) SEEUMIL UOLONED.ULS PRSLICUINEUr TALATES UMOID &
2015)Q AJRUOREIS 5. AI5S1RIN JBH 10 JBIIQAOD 3 JO UOISE|iuIad ay) 1w Buiddel ASAINS BOUBUPIG $4) Wiol) PRINPOTRY :O_mo.ﬁ._ 3N

R

Suimon'y Ag pejesisd sfemiolepysnug |

200Z/E0/T0 #eQ . I.
UoIl}d9g jeued weyjued s
- pT Uondag jeued weyjuels

_ooshmv . _Euhnmv Q09L9F _nnmnwe - .8._..._9_

faepuncg v egioysny D
diysioumg sAemisiep yspug D
ofipug o

(UORYEE

pusgdan

* UOTEEE

DOESEE

."Nh £ . mcm_u_.ﬂm_.._.ﬂ..;u.._.\._.mr;m_;o&
S W h'rﬁ &3 P ' =~ \.W\

e Q@\m gl .la.x . S AN
& SO/~ i~

Vi . £
Dl s ]

; J T T T T
Qaze9vr cozage . ootesy Q0FSY 0069t aoRLSY 00LL9% 009L9t QD529 DOV



R Y e le 4 o e s s g g oo T oy e 08 %E,_n._mn_w g

2002/€0/T0 a1eq : . e !
P GT UONI3S |eue) Weyjue.s i |
< |
3&\\\%\\7\//\ iid pocasr i i e S m

doe e CC . = e - — D -h_
diysioumo shemusieps ysnug _H_ \ i

: obpug o N
puagaT .»
- D LT T SO M b e+ one 4 e e SN - mear e o . S . = e [ . S — = IS R O i

T T I [} T
Q05L8Y 00BL9Y 00LL5F e TE-1] 009y



1002 “¥LZTISTY ME 'SIULPIRI0A [JAID 46 UONISS0IT 0] PEF] AW PUR JURIACRD UMGID SERU1 JUI US(KIND0JCE DES|/oUINRUM TYBAGSS UMOID @

fu) ___sow.m. kg pereain 310 Arwioneig 3 Arsslely Jo 40 J8j0RU) A 0 By) s ButddaLs Aenins SIUBLIAK) SLG Wos) PEINpOICEY s hﬂg."_ﬂo““o:m—_ _WM_ ug
Z002/€0/T0 2ed 1 i
N M
E oovger N~ Gocasy - o0zee % . ..._858 000z9Y : 08LSY " ooasy Golev “Goncsy ,
Ssghaid Y il ST T . = . i
7 P wf \“: % i = Asepunog v egiousny [ | |4
P 50 = 4
/ w_.. » Mm.t..mo vor _...“.. mm “..\ / ™ diysseumg shesueiepn ysoug _H_ :
SR Py, 15 :
g } g S mmeécv &) . ofipug e i
WI. - . : I....I.f e ...\ ISR ——" i '~
N__ = g P < s puagdai
i = S .
h i s T
| __ﬁ ; eSpug E\z IS : I
5_____— .. L " A % f/ i
o e oko1030W 2 = e !
s i soueq o \ 10 ;
g % peoeHn® paeu B P NS _
m 5= 22 oy5520%Y i © N :
x| RN 70;&&—. o A -
guen® HEC S @ .
- /5 AN
O
4
o )
-.-.v a
/# o
. |
; % i
= M Gy
) \@O\
N
i
Z 7 i - -
J “
8]
1
|
w T _,.
2
g __
T ; NN
QOZHIy DOTE5Y _Bm




TOOR 'WAZTTETY MA "SBIP32001d (109 40 UDNDS0.0 ) PEBT ABLY PUR J1Bfdad UM02) SBBUMII UORINDO.AI DESLAOMINGLI) ‘FASLIATDD UHOID g
2011} AIRUOREIS 5, A)salRly 18K J0 181(00UDD Y} |0 UDISEILLA ay) v SulddeLu ABAING dauRUp.Q By wey paanposdey

LT U01193S |eue) Weyjuely)

Bupmon -y Aq pajealn
Z00Z/€0/T0 s1eq

00521

- DOBISY

uoiBoy IN

sfemiaiepm ysnyig
=

_Shhs_

r T

0 -0y
)
y
3 1
! \\. 3
\ 1
/
4 t
1 4 I
IR Y/
H .\\ ‘
A == f:_p_,.-.us .
1
/ )
i 4
I 11l
/ il
! il
B _— .l%
| / il
." e ) d(l
A ’ I RO S T -n___ 1
a M __H “
{ |
N I |
NG __
...,.. -1
L]
. ...{..
[} ...a
T 5
. M
, 5 H
' . o
; ¥ ]
[
=
00589

Asepunog v eyaysny D
diysisumg sAemusiep) Ysaug D
abpug e

puasdaq

Page 47

T R R



1002 Vil Ly IV MH  S0UKRIII0NT JIAID 10 LDHNSBSHO Of PER| AELL U W40 UMODX]) SSIUL) USHANDICRA) PISHCYINRUN "ELACOD UMD &

201]jQ AtEUDREIS §,AEalRi JOH 0 10104U0T W) 10 LUOISSIIR syp qiw Buiddell ABAING BdURUR,0 W) WO Peonpasdsy

QT Uol1}93$ |eue) Weyjuelx)

uolBay IN
sAemialep ysnig
——

Y

._,“m__.
0
|

Buimon-y Aq pajeas)
Z002/€0/T0 @ieq
00S‘2'T
yd 4 : .
\ \\ %ﬁf\ ; .oﬁdce _nanm9 - potser ”_889 - Do6ioy . .Sm__wq Ipnakw.- _BES
Y BEN e . —anr i
m-;., , ___‘ B . - - iy oo W . Aiepunogt 1 siHousny _H_ !
. ! & = diysisumo skemisiem ystivg [ |
ﬁ obpug o |
3 |
; puaSoq mm
B {
{ S
Wl - M e coom - S —— PN - . - - ...i/// s WO -
i R : 3 =
[ k:
/ ; R I
/ |3
{ [ i
f : |3
i ] S5
ﬂ h ll.f
m I e
i P —~ ! . @V - - - R J— — e
- ! %,
Ry, f Yoy, | o0
[l 1 0@ A-
N ] k\Q
_a..\@ oy
L ap
© X ®
- Oy
k] - =
LY
= L)
.II
_ \ .J_ e
- | 3!
\ b’ ahih
=
2 15 ” ol
. : )
B — /
f = ! /"
] = i i
3 i i
ift o
it 1
LR i
i
\ !
: W " ne
Ll L ) T T ¥
00265 o0Teap KLy tsca 00829 onzzse ‘o0acor :




1002 "VEZ TS M ‘53uipbuo0ud i 10 LoRN2es0sd 0f PRa) ASL PUR JySnadod LieJs SaBUL UDRINPOIOS) pesyowmneun TJBlAdes B
Buljmoegy Aq pajesad 2210 AlRUOIEIS 5, 1sa{Ei JaH J0 18040 U7 10 OSSR gy i SUYSKIEL AT BOURIIG Wt Wy pesnposio
2002/80/10 91eqQ

0052'T

uciBay IN
sAemiolep ysnug
=—a. L]
_ﬂ AN
m
A |
\3% -~ DOLigY o - OGRS “
w . . J
m.. - o Aepunog v sgioysny _H_ "
- | dusieumo skemioem usiua [ | || |
ebpug o
puagden
.ﬂﬂnw/ ]
—— .. i
m P
- W S SRR nu-
D
” o} g
._ g
: i

\
i
e "
===y i
£05 .
- ZZaaplg m_._H:un_m il
3 N g i
g i ’ vO.kO [+ i
iy ot gL il
12 AP o [
2 B it
=g W\, 8 il
/] = S il
fo 7= rd Eh
m_ £ bt
PN ik = I
Ry T a Y i 3
: 2 Il .
T
QOEE doz3sY )5 0o8LY nesay . bonzcy _e.om -




Supmon’y q pajeat
Z002/£0/T0 Meg

WO ..mn_..c.—m.um m..ﬂuu_m—r Jrey ._D..Lo__uh..ou.a.% 10 woissiuId Bu) i Fuiddmw Asning sousupig i _h._a.::uuuq._.uo...nuz

0Z Uo29g |eue) Weyueax

uoitiay] AN

sARMIO)EM LSINAgG

Sy AnRR
>
!

|

i

OOTZEE

- 0ZTEE

-OQETEE

e
i
|
| D
$59008 PEOBLINS PARY 1§ JSLLEB] 9]9A04000- Uy mmm_.“m.m o $ L
PEIIN
B -...ﬂ
- - N ¢
: a
o i
by
o
¥
Oqu - - - -
o
&
e
uv.v.@
7
7 77
7
- Arepunog v egiousny D
diysieumo skemetens ysiug [ |
abpug e -
- puasa
T T == T T T T T - T T ¥
obBLoy 00429 cﬁmhwe CogLot oorLBtr Q0EL9% Q02L9% QOTL9% 00045t




m:__}oc.m Aq payeasn
<€00¢/80/T0 =1eQ

00S°¢:T

\.)%OL@

"TO0E "WAZLLh IV MG 2aUINENR0J0 JIAD 0 UDHIUMAIL U} Bee] news Pui 31 00g00 LMGA) 20U UDiA 4ol PESUOUIMTRU ) JUO1IADUL Ui [

a0 Arevones &, Aselr JEH IO J9(10.440D0 #] J0 UOISSILad r: yie Suiddew ARG SSURURAY B} was) peanpeadey

TZ Uoi}993§ |[euen weyjuelx

uosbay IN

sfemialep ysnug
- ]

[

7
[{ s g 4oei. i

o

Eiizz

]

00£98¢%

e — e

LI
009504

O0ELOY \\ \ ,w 4313 uowng , .SMS . _S:.m._ . .cShof Dosssy : - GUB9SY _SBE - 0935w |
7/ %, e
@»« . Kepunog v eyoysny D
diysisumg sfesssiepp ysiaug
] L\ . e ]
" eBpug e
gl .. \.. L. puasaq
- .
= i
#
g
S
B ]
MIN M. -
N T
N . _

T



But Moy y Aq pajeasd
¢002/80/1091eQ

006°2:T

NS

LOQZ "W2 1157V md “SBUIRSEZ0Id |1ARD JO UOQNI=E0/E 0) PRE| ABW PUE JuyFuicc 3 umos?) SBELLJUL UORINPC.Ss) pasuowineuq “walAdes umouDd &
2210 Aruopels & Aselew Jar 1o Ja[I0IGD S 10 USISSRUIR ay) g Buddew ASwng SDURUPIG Y WOL) peanpesdsy

22 Uoioag |eue) weyjuely

==

uolBey aN
shemisiepysylig |

ﬁh.zhwmn SI0AIDIOW-IUE L

ALUBACIALL 553008 puR n_Em.w_

/4/‘

005400

_§nmw

qYeipuey sequiiy m:__u:_oc_.

S8pug USTINOLIY 8

Asepunog v spioysny [ |
diysioume sABMIBIEAA USIUG _H_
efpug o

puslan

T T T
ale 4= 4 O0ELOY aozeay




"T002 "WLZTIGTY ME "SAUINDAD0I0 JIALD IO UOHI IO L b] AELY HUR TYEAGD WAGIZ) Sdu: JUl UULA IR0 PAsLOYINELN Eu.t.:& war) G
M—:—;QG.ﬁ hﬂ pojeasn )0 Aisuoliwg 5. Alsa(aw 24 |0 J6(]0UDD SY) 10 uoIEIIIE gyt yym Fadd .au?_.._m RO L) LY peanp ) :O_mﬂm aN
Z00Z/£0/10 83eQ shemioiemuysnug |
/10 €2 UoI}09g jeuen Emf:m._w
005°Z:T_ <\ . “
[ AN OoEeEy ozEse joresr Do089¥ 20623 el oozige el _
X A
\
\ Aiepunog v agioysny _ _ !
\ diysisu A :
. 7 (| dusieumo shemeien usaug [ | £
\ abpug e m
g : ;
~ puadsq ||’
~ -
s ~ Y
~. \ \
~ v
S 1 m
~ :
~ L)
~o \ m
~ k _
N \
e /
BN PR
~ R iy
by —-
N . B
Pt \ 1 D
P \ ? D)
e \ 8 T
——— \ i ¥
—_—— ki weo
_— i _
/ P A _
/ 3, \
[ ~ \
A
- ! \ \
. \
1 7 - W S w
8 I N N \ &,/ \ |
s BunysH N TR pow H ﬂ. — i
g i T e B (o) Y Ly \
. 7 ....n.“.ﬁ\ M? 3 .¢.- .. R // - . . R // ’
AN I \ = Xy \ i
N 2 \! X \ f
X ’/ - /// \ .,
P T N i P A\ Rey R :
L f o ; I\ \SOL_U /” v
F N A g, 2
AN AN 84 X |
wll_# 3 A m\..ue_m e d
i ) 0 > o
A KL A - S PN
3 kg o W % -
> N xT W é: m
% 3 e
Mw..., Vit W o @ = _
5 . \ Ladpug oy noyl B
T T - T 4 T i T 5 - A DT a8 T ;
Qorest 0639y 00189% | el o06.9F 008L9v _nokov -com...ov _GOmx.wv. _




e e g e uoifiey 3N
Sumony £q paeaa) shemialem usnig
Z2002/€0/T0 2ieq = 3 anan
—“-—”-mm n“m“ 1 dﬂ -—ﬂ‘_mm“ —'- A”v _“-LHH-va mmw — —mw -‘_ —mw “”u- —\—(_ —mw -‘—”-.—- —mwn— mm“- mm“ “"“
A ]
/ \)@ ] |
\ % d 0061 .Saeq .889 _Somme .88..# _859 _889 _Smm$
|
\
!
- \
3 1
..I.I | .
-~ | T
o) T
R ‘MK
..I/ Y
- \
e \
A\
o
i Jff Jf A ]
X \
Wk . .
\) RN
N N
//
B N
\ \
\ <
w I \ \ \
] / g i W \ up
2 \\ ) 1. ()
/ e \ o
’ 277 N1\ \ ]
e = Wy um \
/ — sl [— fz mw \ hHl
s \ \ A mw i)
e VR 2 4
8 s v % W
8 LN L\
Ta M /. ,/.. X /
B
E vl 2\
AR\ = ® M
Vo [CIR
N \ ’/ \
R i
b ’ |
1o \
[0 \
LW 4
T\ \
i \
Aiepunog v sjjoysny _ _ W\ A
diysssumo shenusiep ysiug D :,
! B \
ik
ofpug e :,,
| :
pusdal | W\ = - - an _
i |
T ] ____ r T T = T =
boIESY 00068¢ DiR29¢ DOASOH 00L89w [sle=1-1-1]

AT o —

1
00599:-

T L 1 R § 4 R L T 4 A

.



OOLEEE

00862E

OOEBZE

-

Buymonry Aq pajeasn
2002/€0/10 sieq

LU FLG LY T AR SOUROUIL Al A ML e vy D) 7000 M {4 SLAILD WAUL] SUOLLIWE Uy UG S LULIEY] | 14aInuug uaus)) &
IO AIBUOHRIS S Asalew S JO SIOIUOY UL K LS:IMIED a1y g Buiddews AMNG BOURVRIN 33 Wos)] Peonposdiey :O_nmm AN

GZ Uol}dag jeue) weyjuesy skemisiepmusiug

i

D000LY Ca660Y Qo6 [2+]d
| 6o 00969 005697 00p6IL

adpug

o

15214 5, meysa09

—

T

[ R et]

Page 55

Kepunog v aypusny _||||_
diysisumo shemusieps ysiug _U

puesa

1
QGECLy

I
00204t

abpug e __
|

T T J
00104 0000, » DO65SY J0BE5Y .
00553F Lovaer

. . G vt 2 bt 5




0056ZE

009628

D0L62E

DOBEZE

Sujmon y Aq payeeid
2002/20/10 21=Q

_oome OW

1002 "WLZ118TY ME (1412 JO LY 10 ) PRR] APLU PUR sl umeds SaFULGUE UGHINPAIRY peeyolinedn BuAdeD o) @
00z viz 20 .:m:ansm s Aiselep JeH 10 19]013u00) 7Y Jo uaIssIAIed ay) yjiv Buddew ASAIng SIURUPAY 81 LK) pRONPoICEY _.__O_Uﬂﬂ =N

shemialepp ysnig

9Z U01}93g [eue) Weyjueln .ﬂlﬁ

_oahcnw

0090L% .chnh.- DOFOLY —8@9@ DOZO0LY m_o._ o_ne. - ~oono.=.

\\.aomﬁ V J 382

bwuc_._ 1._ mt__ocmam D
diysiaumQ m>W6\$m>> ysnug _U
obpig e

puasan




Burmon-y £q pajeatn
200Z/€0/T091eq -

QOm.wﬁ\%

TO0Z "WLE L IL 1V MY Ouiprarsnuy |16 40 Udipieuwaunt v) e Ao pu

201110 A19WIL91S $, 41500y J3H 10 JB(I0AUE0 U] o L

umui)

Aenung,

A JHEELAOQIMELY | Y1 LU LIUL) 6

LYW

P40 BU) Wouy peanposday

LZ U01193§ jeues) weyjuelr)

uotBey N

FE7IN) o

_Sm:.v

00Tty
.

UULbok

D0Z6cE

I(X)VSZE

L1 T4

U0k

W FAW] —_— e

bmﬁc: [oysny _H_ o

diysioumg shemprens usglig [ |
ebpug e

puaga

I()OE&ZE

=

I T e

T
QOvLLY

I
[eri]¥4 )

T
o604t

T
0aZgLt

T i ——— A i

T
00L04p

P U . TR T+ R T ol Ty



Page 58



Agenda Iltem 5

Communities Scrutiny Group
Thursday, 5 October 2023

Social Housing Models

Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Report of the Director - Neighbourhoods
1. Purpose of report

1.1. This report will inform scrutiny of the Council’s approved policy and operational
framework for the provision of affordable housing. This will bring Councillors up
to date on the current delivery of affordable housing in the Borough and provide
an overview of other sector models. This includes the existing methods that are
used to allocate the Affordable Housing budget and an overview of current and
future housing need.

1.2. The report reflects upon a previous Cabinet report: ‘Allocation of Affordable
Housing Capital Budget’ considered on 10 September 2019 which in turn built
upon the Affordable Housing Capital Review (13 March 2018) and the Property
Company Options (14 November 2017) Cabinet reports.

2. Recommendation

It is RECOMMENDED that the Communities Scrutiny Group scrutinises the
information provided by officers on the Council’s current approach to the
provision of social housing.

3 Reasons for Recommendation

3.1 To ensure the Council maximises affordable housing options to meet local
housing need and achieves the best return from its capital budget.

4, Supporting Information
Council build programme- background and context

4.1. In common with many other local authorities the Council transferred its housing
stock in 2003. Initially the stock was transferred to Rushcliffe Homes, formed
for the purpose of managing and maintaining the former council stock.
Rushcliffe Homes subsequently merged with the Walbrook Housing Group and
Metropolitan Housing Trust in 2007 to form Spirita. Spirita was formed as part
of the Metropolitan Housing Partnership and later became known as
Metropolitan Housing Trust Limited. In 2019, Metropolitan Housing Trust
Limited merged with Thames Valley Housing to form Metropolitan Thames

Page 59



4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

Valley Housing (MTVH) who now own and manage the former council housing
stock.

MTVH is a Registered Provider (RP) of affordable housing. They are the largest
RP in the Borough, but not the only RP operating in the Borough. The Council
is still responsible for managing the allocation of households to affordable social
rented housing. The Council has nomination rights to RP stock in the Borough,
secured by planning agreements and nominations agreements.

The Council currently owns no housing stock and no longer runs a Housing
Revenue Account.

Over the last 15 years, successive governments have supported council house
building programmes to varying degrees. This follows a period of limited council
house building again under successive governments. The Housing Revenue
Account subsidy regime was dismantled in 2012, allowing councils to keep
surpluses on their rental income for reinvestment. Councils were also allowed
to retain receipts from council house ‘right to buy’ sales in 2012 to fund
development and acquisition programmes.

This has provided budget capacity for many stock owning councils to pursue
house building programmes through their Housing Revenue Account (HRA).
Locally, the unitary authorities of Nottingham, Derby and Leicester all have
significant HRA funded council building and acquisitions programmes. Smaller
local authorities such as Broxtowe and Ashfield also have development and
acquisition programmes funded predominantly through HRA surpluses and
Right to Buy receipts.

The vast majority of council house development and acquisition is provided by
local authorities with existing HRA housing stock. However, there are examples
of councils without existing stock developing or acquiring both affordable and
market housing and there will be a number of drivers for this.

Current regulation allows councils to own up to 200 dwellings without the need
to open a Housing Revenue Account. It is more common for a council without
a HRA that wishes to acquire or develop affordable or even market housing to
set up a bespoke company for this purpose.

The usual factors to support a council house building programme are as follows:

e There is exceptional housing need and resultant temporary
accommodation costs are a big financial drain as such there would be an
overall cost saving;

Delivery by existing Registered Providers is limited;

The council has land assets that it wishes to develop;

The council wishes to develop bespoke housing; and

The council has funds which it wishes to invest in affordable housing.

Of the above factors, Rushcliffe has capital funds ringfenced for the provision
of affordable housing. The Council may have some desire to develop bespoke

Page 60



4.9.

4.10.

housing, which the report covers later on. However, none of the other factors
above are relevant to the Borough, so the drivers for council house building are
reduced within the context of Rushcliffe.

There are further considerations for the Council when assessing the options for
a council affordable housing build programme. These are set out below:

The Council has no management or maintenance capacity, so this would
have to be bought in or delivered by way of a management agreement with
a Reqistered Provider partner.

A stock owning Council has Registered Provider status. A non-stock owning
Council, like Rushcliffe Borough Council, will need to apply for Registered
Provider status if it is intending to own stock. This is usually granted as a
formality. A council owned company set for the purposes of delivering
affordable housing will need to go through a formal application process for
Registered Provider status, which is onerous and will require a raft of
compliant policy documents.

Any direct council owned housing will be let on a secure tenancy,
irrespective of whether the Council operates a HRA. Secure tenants have
a statutory Right to Buy and this presents a risk of stock loss at below
market value.

A council owned company is treated as a Registered Provider in this
respect, so tenancies will be let on an assured tenancy with only the Right
to Acquire applying. The discount under Right to Acquire is far less
generous and is rarely taken up. A housing company registered as
Registered Provider fully owned by the Council would have demonstrate
regulatory compliance with Regulator of Social Housing, which will include
setting up a Board and Constitution. This will absorb a significant resource.

As the Council does not own any land suitable for development, the most
effective delivery route would be through property acquisition. Acquired
property generally presents a higher maintenance liability than new-build
properties. The Council also has a target to be net zero by 2030. Any
acquisitions would need to be considered in the context of that target.

However, in spite of all the challenges, the Council has an uncommitted
Affordable Housing budget of £4.5m and the acquisition or development of
housing to let as council housing would produce a revenue income for the
Council and potentially provide the opportunity to source specialist housing.
It should be noted that a large proportion of the uncommitted balance is
being considered to grant fund two MTVH schemes which would provide
the council with nomination rights to social rented housing.

Affordable Housing capital budget

The Council’s Affordable Housing capital budget 2023/2024 is £4.579m. A
further £456k has been committed but not yet spent. The budget is made up of
£0.638m residual receipt from the original sale of the council’s housing stock
and £3.941m commuted sums.

Page 61



4.11.

4.12.

4.13.

4.14.

4.15.

Of the commuted sum element of the budget, £3.653m was received as the
result of an overage provision within the planning (section 106) agreement for
the site known as Land East and West of Chapel Lane, Bingham (planning ref:
10/01962/0OUT). The on-site affordable housing provision was reduced as a
result of an independent viability assessment during the outline consent. As
part of the planning agreement the Council would receive a payment in lieu
should the site realise a greater value than assumed within the assessment,
this is known as an overage.

In 2021/22 and 2022/23, the Council received the total sum of £3.780m from
the Crown Estates (landowner). There is a time limit for the allocation of these
sums, expiring on 8 April 2032. This amount of capital received through the
overage is a far greater sum than the Council has received since the original
transfer of the Council’s housing stock. In 2018, the Council had less than
£0.5m of commuted sums.

It is not a straightforward matter to allocate that amount of capital within the
context of Rushcliffe for the following reasons:

e The majority of affordable housing in Rushcliffe is delivered by planning
agreement, where there is no need for additional subsidy as the subsidy
comes by way of the landowner/developer;

e The Council has no land assets which it could develop for affordable
housing;

e Land values are high in Rushcliffe meaning it is difficult for Registered
Providers to compete to acquire market sites;

e The lead in time for development means that any allocation will take some
time to come forward,;

e Most Registered Providers have funding awards from Homes England
linked to delivery targets which they will tend to prioritise.

The main opportunity for the Council has been to continue to allocate its funds
through the work of its RP partners in identifying and acquiring sites either on
the open market or via their own land assets. These partners may then apply
for funds from the Council to support the development of affordable housing.

This strategy was further endorsed as following Cabinet approval on 12t
October 2021 Ade Regeneration consultants were appointed to undertake a
High Level Options Review to consider options to maximise the benefits from
future AH investments, including:

e Continue to provide grant to partners to develop schemes in return for
nomination rights, specifically investing in existing struggling assets owned
by partners such as Later Living Schemes as an alternative use of grant
versus green field / new build housing development. This could deliver
some ‘quick win’ solutions.

Page 62



4.16.

4.17.

4.18.

4.19.

4.20.

e Provide Council assets through a long-term lease to a partner RP, and
grant, in return for the development and nomination rights for general needs
housing.

e Providing top-up payments to developers to increase affordable housing
provision where viability issues mean they are below the required planning
policy levels, or there is scope to exceed the planning policy numbers.

e Working with partners to directly fund and deliver homes. But this is entirely
predicated on there being land in the control of partners which there
currently is not.

Several of the attractive options are dependent on the Council having access
to land, for which none has been identified. Others require the willingness and
collaboration of RP’s who have access to land or developers who have plans
to deliver houses in the Borough. Without controlling the land, all of the options
are dependent on the cooperation of third parties.

Housing Needs

As planning authorities, district and borough councils prepare housing need
assessments to inform their Local Plans. Paragraph 50 of the National Planning
Policy Framework requires that local planning authorities plan for a mix of
housing based on the needs of different groups in the community and identify
the size, type tenure and range of housing that is required in particular
locations.

The latest Housing Needs Assessment was produced by Iceni in 2020 to
support the emerging Local Plan. This indicated an annual net unmet need for
294 affordable rented dwellings per year.

This figure appears quite high, but it is one of the lower figures relative to other
district and boroughs across the County (see Table 2). It should also be noted
that the affordable housing need figure was calculated in 2020 and considers
new affordable housing completions over the previous three years to calculate
the supply side.

Affordable housing completions since 2020/21 have increased significantly
which has improved the supply side and we expect outturn levels at the 250 to
300 level for the next few years.

Table 1: NI 155 Affordable housing outturn v target (Rushcliffe)

Year QOutturn Target
2019/20 154 171
2020/21 106 100
2021/22 114 100
2022/23 281 200
2023/24 On target 300

Source: Rushcliffe Borough Council

Page 63




4.21.

4.22.

Table 2 Housing completions and level of affordable housing

New housing Affordable homes built %
completions (social rent, affordable Affordable
2017-2022 rent, intermediate rent, housing
shared ownership,
affordable home
ownership)
2017-2022
Ashfield 1,547 235 15
Bassetlaw 3,219 502 16
Broxtowe 1,147 92 8
Gedling 1,551 178 11
Mansfield 1,935 184 9.5
Newark and 3,435 697 20
Sherwood
Rushcliffe 3,508 864 25
County total 15,105 2,752 18

Source: LPA housing monitoring reports and live tables on affordable housing supply
December 2022 Gov.uk

However, since the pandemic the Council has seen increasing demands for
affordable housing driven by a number of factors:

Reduction in the size of the private rental sector (PRS)

Increasing rent levels within the PRS

Increase in affordability ratios income: house prices and increased
mortgage costs

Increasing homelessness — the ending of tenancies by private landlords is
a principal cause of homelessness and domestic abuse is a further major
cause

Increasing demands from special Government resettlement and asylum
programmes e.g. Syrian and Afghan resettlement schemes and Homes for
Ukraine

Impact of ‘viability’ as a material planning consideration resulting in the
reduction of affordable rented homes. Additional costs to meet enhanced
building and fire safety standards and decarbonisation are likely to
compound this further.

Table 3 below details the number of people on the housing waiting list (housing
register) in each district of Nottinghamshire who are in housing need and
seeking social housing accommodation, with each having different bedroom
requirements depending upon family make up. Around 50% of those who apply
to join the housing register across Nottinghamshire need one-bedroom
accommodation.

Page 64



Table 3 — Local Authority Housing Register (2021-22)

Total Households on waiting list seeking homes

households

on housing |1 2 3 3+

register bedroom | bedrooms | bedrooms | bedrooms
Ashfield 4,074 2,400 1,023 601 50
Bassetlaw 3,903 1,817 859 976 251
Broxtowe 2,795 1,579 507 403 306
Gedling 613 280 202 105 26
Mansfield 6,391 3,214 1,612 1,450 115
Newark & 4414 1,517 988 390 58
Sherwood
Rushcliffe 629 458 108 52 11
(at 15.8.23) (584) (466) (73) (41) (4)
Total* 22,819 11,265 5,299 3,977 817

* Total households on the waiting list does not match the total number of bedrooms due to
an unspecified number of bedrooms on the housing register
Source: DLUHC LA housing returns 2022

Specialist Housing Needs

4.23.

4.24.

4.25.

4.26.

There is a need for specialist housing in the Borough, in particular for adapted
or adaptable housing. There are significant pressures on the Disabled Facilities
Grant (DFG) service and budget. The Council’s Local Plan Part 2 Policy 12
(Housing Standards) states that in developments of more than 100 dwellings,
at least 1% should comply with Building Regulation requirements M4(3)(a).

Within the Local Plan review the Council are proposing a more substantive
policy but that will need to be borne out through the evidence base and viability
assessment. The Council are also looking to use the affordable housing budget
to fund additional adapted affordable housing provision on current and future
sites. The Council has already recently financed the extension and adaptation
of a 3 bedroom bungalow in Cropwell Bishop and there are also plans to fund
some adapted dwellings on an identified MTVH site.

However, additional adapted dwellings will take some time to feed through to
the adaptation waiting list as many applicants do not wish to move and owner
occupier applicants would not be eligible for affordable housing. Ultimately this
approach will assist in future proofing the stock in the Borough.

The County Council produced a Supported Housing Strategy in 2019, which
outlined the housing needs of special needs groups across the County and sets
out a four-year strategy for delivery. This identifies numerous groups who need
some form of specialist accommodation and/or accommodation with support.

Page 65



4.27.

4.28.

5.1.

5.2.

6.1.

6.2.

There is a general lack of suitable, affordable housing for those who need it in
many parts of Nottinghamshire. This particularly is affecting younger people
who cannot afford their own home, but there is a shortage of suitable
accommodation for those in the later stages of life.

Nottinghamshire County Council plays a very important part of the housing
system in Nottinghamshire, coordinating, commissioning, and market shaping
activity to ensure housing is available for vulnerable people and those with care
and support needs e.g., homelessness prevention, improving health and
wellbeing, and integration support for resettled refugees. Given the prominence
of housing in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and other key strategic and
policy frameworks including wider Integrated Care Systems it is envisaged that
collaborative approaches will continue to develop which will assist with the
overall housing provision.

Risks and Uncertainties

There is a time limit on the allocation of some commuted sums and if they are
not allocated within that period they may need to be returned to the original
party. This means the Council needs to be proactive in respect of budget
allocation.

The report also identifies a range of risks and concerns that predicate against
the Council looking to become a stock holding authority or develop and retain
a smaller number of properties.

Implications
Financial Implications

The complexity and resources required to set up a council affordable housing
build programme are considered to be prohibitive as set out in Section 4.9 —
4.16 Acquiring, for example, 20 properties and the land, even if land could be
identified, would require a separate business plan and likely to place a debt
burden upon the Council, and therefore a significant financial impact. The risks
of not having the right governance and expertise in place can lead to the
misappropriation of significant funds for example. Many local authorities that
have a higher burden of debt are those that manage housing. This is evident
in OFLOG data. The legacy impact of any borrowing is the cost of financing
debt currently increasing as interest rates rise, not to mention other current cost
drivers such as rising construction costs, with current construction supply side
issues for both labour and materials. Debt management and rising inflation in
their wider sense are real issues for some authorities that either have, or face
the potential of, s114 notices.

The expiry date for the Affordable Housing Commuted Sum is 08/04/2032.

Legal Implications

Page 66



There are no legal implications in this report.

6.3. Equalities Implications

6.

6.

There are no equalities implications in this report.

4. Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Implications
There are no Crime and Disorder implications in this report.

5. Biodiversity Net Gain Implications

There are no biodiversity implications in this report.

7. Link to Corporate Priorities
The Environment Making homes more energy efficient can significantly
reduce energy consumption, thereby reducing carbon
emissions
Quality of Life Strong partnership working will enable residents to have
safer, healthier and live longer lives in which they are able
to fulfil their aspirations. The continued supply of affordable
housing will reduce the instability caused to families and
communities by preventing homelessness
Efficient Services The provision of social rented affordable housing will have
a greater impact on supporting the Council’s priorities and
ensuring best value
Sustainable Growth Effective partnership working to increase the supply of
affordable housing will meet a range of needs across the
borough which in turn will generate economic growth and
deliver other significant benefits (New Homes Bonus).
8. Recommendations
It is RECOMMENDED that Communities Scrutiny Group scrutinises the
information provided by officers on the Council’s current approach to the
provision of social housing.
For more information contact: Donna Dwyer

Strategic Housing Manager
0115 914 4275
ddwyer@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Background papers available for | None
Inspection:

List of appendices: Appendix 1 — Scrutiny Matrix

Page 67



mailto:ddwyer@rushcliffe.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Rushcliffe Borough Council — Scrutiny Matrix

Councillor Request for Scrutiny

Proposed topic of scrutiny

Model for Provision of Social Housing

| would like to understand

(key lines of enquiry)

Rushcliffe no longer owns social housing, having disposed
of it about 20 years ago, but is the “Housing Authority” for
Rushcliffe, responsible for allocation of social housing and
homelessness, working with Metropolitan Thames Valley
Housing (MTVH) and other Registered Providers who own
the social housing stock and operate the rental service.
Many councils like Rushcliffe are registered providers
themselves, rather than working only through third parties.

After 20 years, is it time to review the model and consider
whether Rushcliffe should once again become a registered
provider to own and operate some housing?

What are the pros and cons of the different models?

With the current cost of living increases and high interest
rates, is demand for social housing increasing, and if so is
the current model able to respond? Are there currently
financial pressures on the third party providers?

New housing developments are providing “affordable”
housing but this includes options like shared ownership.
Does Rushcliffe currently have sufficient social housing for
rent to meet demand? If not, would a change of model
alter the situation?

Are there specific types of social housing where there is a
particular shortage? For instance: homes for single person
households, bungalows, accommodation adapted for
mobility issues, warden assisted homes for older people,
homes for young families. Would a change of model give
flexibility to develop options for this?

Would Rushcliffe be able to provide a more supportive and
responsive service with a different model?

Rushcliffe currently has over £5M of ringfenced capital
budgeted for the provision of affordable housing. Some of
this dates back to sale of council houses before 2003, and
the rest has been contributed by developers in lieu of
providing affordable housing in situ on new housing
estates, i.e. so that the homes can be built elsewhere.
Would the option of using this funding directly be of benefit
to residents?

Page 69




| think this topic should be X

Poor Performance ldentified

X

Change in Legislation or Local Policy

scrutinised because

Resident Concern or Interest

(please tick)

Cabinet Recommendation

Links to the Corporate Strategy

Other (please state reason)

Officer Consideration of Councillor Request for Scrutiny

Officer Feedback (please tick)

v

Officer Comment

- Issue already being addressed

- Issue has already been

considered in the last 2 years?

- Issueis alegal matter

- Issue of a complaint
investigation

- Issueis a staffing matter

- Thereis an alternative way of
dealing with the issue

Is there sufficient capacity

- Scrutiny Work Programme?

- Officer Resources?

Recommendation

Lead Officer

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny
and Scrutiny Group

Page 70




Agenda Iltem 6

Communities Scrutiny Group
Thursday, 5 October 2023

) Review of Smoke Control Areas
Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Report of the Director — Neighbourhoods
1. Purpose of report

1.1. This report provides the background information required to enable members
to input and shape a public consultation on revised smoke control orders
within the Borough.

2. Recommendation
It is RECOMMENDED that the Communities Scrutiny Group:

a) considers on the options provided for smoke control areas within the
Borough

b) indicates a preferred option enabling public consultation to take place

c) recommends its preferred option to Cabinet for adoption.

3. Reasons for Recommendation

The report sets out four options for the Council to consider in Paragraph 4.22.
The Government’s Air Quality Strategy priorities include the reduction of
pollution from domestic burning through Smoke Control Areas (SCAs) and
use of cleaner fuels. The strategy clearly states the Government’s expectation
that local authorities use their powers to reduce PM2s and that all councils
should support the delivery of national PM2.s targets by taking action to reduce
emissions from sources within their control. It is therefore officers’
recommendation that the Council revokes the existing Smoke Control Orders
and declares a new Smoke Control Order to cover the entire Borough (Option
D).

4, Supporting Information

4.1. In 1952, London experienced a smog which lasted for five days, leading to the
Government passing the first Clean Air Act in 1956. This was an important
moment in public health. This Act allowed local authorities to declare parts of
their areas to be “smoke control areas”. A great deal of work was done by
local authorities to make sure that open fireplaces were replaced by
appliances that used only “smokeless” fuels — either solid fuel or gas, and
grants were given towards the cost of the work. The designation of SCAs in
towns and cities in the UK made a dramatic difference in air quality, with
smoke and sulphur dioxide levels greatly reduced. The 1956 and 1968 Clean
Air acts were repealed by the Clean Air Act 1993 which consolidated and

Page 71



4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

extended the provisions of the earlier legislation. The Environment Act 2021
makes amendments to the Clean Air Act 1993 as outlined in this report.

Air pollution can impact health when there is exposure over a lengthy period
increasing the risk of those being exposed to it of developing certain health
conditions.

One of the main pollutants of concern is particulate matter (PM), with the
smaller particles, referred to as PMozs, identified by the World Health
Organization as the most damaging to human health. It is accepted that there
is no safe level of PMzspollution so any reductions of emissions of this
pollutant, especially in locations close to where people live and are exposed
to it, will be beneficial to health.

In the UK, domestic burning accounted for 27.3% of total PMz.semissions in
2021. The use of wood alone in domestic indoor burning activities accounted
for 20.5% of PM2semissions in the same year. The level of exposure to
pollution from this source is potentially much greater than the emissions from
industry and manufacturing because people live much closer to home
chimneys than they do from most industrial sources, so there is less
opportunity for the pollution to disperse before people are exposed to it.
Pollution is also released directly into the home when open fires and stoves
are used.

The emissions from a small number of solid fuel appliances, especially if they
are operated in a manner that does not comply with the regulations, could
raise short term pollution levels enough to directly impact the health of
vulnerable individuals.

The Air Quality Strategy for Nottingham and Nottinghamshire 2020-2030
provides estimated reductions in mortality and morbidity across
Nottinghamshire for a ten-year period from 2017 if levels of particulate matter
(PMz2.5) were reduced to lower than 12ug m-3. The modelled estimates for
Rushcliffe indicate a reduction of approximately 1200 cases of heart disease,
respiratory illness, stroke, diabetes and lung cancer and a reduction in the
annual number of deaths of 113 with a reduction in PM2zsexposure. The
corresponding estimated cumulative costs avoided is in the region of
£12.75million for PMz ..

According to the UK Health Security Agency (formerly Public Health England),
poor air quality is considered to be the largest environmental risk to public
health in the UK. Air pollution can cause health impacts across a person’s
lifetime, contribute to health inequalities and impact on NHS and social care
costs.

The vision for the Air Quality Strategy for Nottingham and Nottinghamshire
2020-2030 is for all of Nottinghamshire residents and visitors to have clean air
that allows them to lead healthy and fulfilling lives. Strategic objective three
relates to reducing, minimising and preventing emissions from all sources and
activities, including by enforcing existing (e.g., smoke control orders) and any

Page 72



4.9.

4.10.

4.11.

4.12.

4.13.

4.14.

4.15.

new legislation that minimises emissions from commercial and domestic solid
fuel combustion.

The Rushcliffe Borough Council Climate Change Strategy 2021-30 highlights
the Council’s commitment to tackling climate change and to making a major
contribution to reducing greenhouse gas emissions for the Borough.

The Rushcliffe Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026 includes a measure to
increase residents’ awareness of changes in legislation that seek to improve
air quality and take enforcement action, as necessary. Once a final decision is
made by Cabinet on the preferred option it is anticipated that a
comprehensive media campaign will be undertaken to increase public
awareness.

The Strategy states that local authorities should keep the boundaries of
existing SCAs under review, especially if development has taken place
outside of the boundaries. They should consider whether it would be
beneficial to declare a new SCA. Local authorities with SCA are expected to
enforce restrictions which apply within those areas. All local authorities should
enforce solid fuel regulations - fuel sold for domestic purposes should have
the ‘Ready to Burn’ logo. No retailers should be selling traditional (bitumous)
coal for indoor domestic burning from 1 May 2023. It should be noted that it is
expected that this element will be enforced by Trading Standards colleagues
at Nottinghamshire County Council.

Government expects that in most cases providing information to householders
will be sufficient to address smoke emissions in SCA. However, where this is
not the case, it is expected local authorities will enforce the SCA.

The Government is not considering a ban on domestic burning in England as
there is recognition that some householders are reliant on solid fuel burning
as a primary source for heating, hot water and cooking.

What is a Smoke Control Area?

Anyone responsible for premises within a SCA must not:

e Allow smoke emissions from the chimney of a building;

e Obtain and use solid fuel (including logs), other than authorised fuel; and

e Tradespersons must not sell by delivery solid fuel, other than authorised
fuel to premises located within the SCA.

Exemptions do apply however, and Department for the Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) approved ‘authorised fuels’ can be used within
SCAs because they burn either without causing smoke or are fuels that
contain less harmful pollutants. In addition, ‘exempt appliances’ that are
specifically listed in regulations can be used in SCAs because they have
passed tests to demonstrate that, when used correctly and with the fuel for
which they are designed, they are capable of burning solid fuel without
emitting harmful smoke. For example, certain wood-burning stoves would
qualify as exempt appliances. It should be noted that there are no

Page 73



4.16.

4.17.

4.18.

4.19.

4.20.

4.21.

Government funded grants available to support the replacement of
unauthorised appliances.

Unauthorised fuel, such as logs or coal, cannot be burnt in an open fireplace
or wood burning appliance within a SCA. These fuels produce smoke
containing harmful pollutants which have an impact on health and the
environment. It should also be noted that it is already an offence to acquire or
sell unauthorised fuels e.g. logs to be used within a SCA.

Permanent moorings including moored vessels may be entitled to apply for
reimbursement from the Council to upgrade their solid fuel appliance to
comply with the SCA requirements (up to 70% of the total cost). There is a
legal duty for the Council to reimburse permanent moorings only. RBC does
not hold specific records on numbers of permanent moored vessels in the
Borough. However, an initial data query would indicate there are likely to be
fewer than 30 (located in Barton in Fabis, Ratcliffe on Soar and Wilford Lane
West Bridgford).

Existing Smoke Control Area coverage across Rushcliffe

The existing SCA coverage includes parts of West Bridgford and Edwalton as
shown by the shaded area in Appendix 1. This area was declared under a
series of nine separate Smoke Control Orders in the 1970s and early 1980s.

Environment Act 2021 Changes

The Environment Act 2021 made amendments to The Clean Air Act 1993 and

came into force on 1 May 2022. It

e introduced civil financial penalties for smoke emissions in a SCA;

e strengthened the offences in relation to the sale of certain solid fuels for
use in SCAs;

e provision to include moored vessels in a SCA (although this is not a
requirement).

Before making a smoke control order there is a legal requirement for the
Council to undertake a public consultation exercise which, in addition to the
normal channels, will include publishing a notice detailing the proposals in the
London Gazette and a local newspaper. The Council is required to consider
any objections which currently will be brought as part of a final report and
recommendation to the meeting of the Cabinet in January 2024. An order
shall come into operation not less than six months after it is made. The
consultation on any proposed changes to the SCA coverage across the
Borough will last for at least four weeks and will be widely publicised through
our usual communication channels.

It is currently proposed that the Council will need to consider one of the
following options:

Page 74



4.22.

4.23.

4.24.

Option A - Do nothing / Leave unchanged — coverage remains limited to parts
of West Bridgford and Edwalton;

Option B - Revoke the existing Smoke Control Orders and seek to declare a
Smoke Control Order to cover the whole of West Bridgford, Gamston and
Edwalton;

Option C - Revoke the existing Smoke Control Orders and seek to declare
new Smoke Control Orders to cover the whole of West Bridgford, Gamston
and Edwalton and the larger town and villages areas across the Borough
including Bingham, East Leake, Keyworth, Ruddington, Radcliffe on Trent and
Cotgrave;

Option D - Revoke the existing Smoke Control Orders and seek to declare a
Smoke Control Order to cover the entire Borough. Within this option the
Council can also decide whether to include moored vessels in the Smoke
Control Order.

Enforcement

The Council will need to develop an underlying policy to support enforcement
action. This will sit underneath the Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy
and will detail how the civil financial penalty provisions will be implemented in
the SCA. The Environment Act 2021 enables the Council to issue a civil
financial penalty of between £175 to £300 if smoke is emitted contrary to the
requirement of the smoke control order. It is proposed that the penalty level
will be based on the seriousness and repetition of offences with the statutory
minimum (£175) for the first offence, increasing to £225 then £300 for
subsequent offences.

It is expected that enforcement will be based on intelligence and complaints
rather than proactive checks and will need to follow the Council’s Corporate
Enforcement Policy which encourages a reasonable and proportionate
approach. An indicative outline procedural flowchart is provided in Appendix
2.

Once smoke is observed emanating from a chimney within the smoke control
order area, the Act enables the Council to issue an Improvement Notice to the
occupier of the property. This notice will contain information including the SCA
restrictions, when smoke was seen, how the person can burn solid fuels in a
SCA legally, and what happens next. If smoke is again observed, then the
Council will issue a Notice of Intent to the building occupier which informs
them that there is enough evidence to prove that smoke was emitted from
their chimney in a SCA, when the smoke was observed and the Council’s
intention to issue a civil penalty. The occupier has the right to object in writing
to the proposed financial penalty within 28 days from the day after the notice
was given and must do so with supporting evidence. If the building occupier
does not object to the notice of intent or if the objection is not accepted a final

Page 75



4.25.

notice will be issued detailing the amount of the fixed penalty to be paid within

28 days.

The declaration of a SCA does not impact on outdoor barbeques, chimineas
or pizza ovens unless the appliance uses a chimney on the roof of a building
e.g., a summerhouse. Garden bonfires are not prohibited in an SCA however
existing statutory nuisance laws will still apply.

Risks and Uncertainties

Option Potential benefits Potential risks
A Retain existing SCAs RBC not aligned with the Government Air
No change to existing system Quality Strategy.
No impact on residents during RBC not aligned to corporate objectives
a cost of living crisis Perceived inequality across the Borough.
Not making changes to the existing
coverage could be perceived by residents
as a lack of interest in taking measures to
improve air quality and public health
Existing SCAs have not been reviewed
since their inception in the 1970s and
1980s. The urban areas defined in the
SCAs have expanded significantly in that
time.
B Reviewing and updating the | RBC not aligned with the Government Air
smoke control orders will | Quality Strategy.
ngeure they are brought up to RBC not aligned to corporate objectives
Limited changes to the existing Perceived inequality across the Borough
system Not making significant changes to the
- . . existing coverage could be perceived by
lal:?ilr:ecja (l:rgg[a;t”v(i): ;:izligents residents as a lack of interest in taking
9 9 measures to improve air quality and public
health
C New Orders focussed on more | Perceived inequality across the Borough.
\L/‘Vr'?;r; Iﬁriaesr c(gncfgr?tr:t?(;(r)]ggor:‘ Extending coverage could be viewed
oIIutiongwouId be expected negatively particularly due to current cost of
pnd the maiority of pl liv living crisis owing to the impact of higher
a '€ majority of people Ve | ¢ o) costs and new approved replacement
but minimising impact in rural apoliances
areas of the Borough. PP '
: . Anybody who buys or sells controlled solid
Better allgnment_ with the fuels in a SCA is guilty of an offence and
Governments  Air  Quality P :
Strate and the Councils could be prosecuted except if it is for use in
cor or%)':e obiectives an approved fireplace. In effect anyone who
P J wishes to continue to burn a controlled fuel
Demonstrating readiness to | such as logs will need to ensure that they
take action to improve public | are doing so using an approved appliance.
It is anticipated that it would cost in excess

Page 76




6.1.

6.1.1.

6.1.2.

6.1.3.

6.2.

health outcomes

Increasing coverage will
reduce smoke emissions and
therefore improve public health
outcomes for the majority of

of £1,500 to upgrade each appliance.

Impact on residents with open fireplaces
and wood burning appliances and existing
business that sell and deliver logs within
the borough.

residents

D Alignment with the | Extending coverage could be viewed
Governments  Air  Quality | negatively particularly due to current cost of
Strategy and the Council | living crisis.

corporate objectives.

Demonstrating readiness to
take action to improve public
health outcomes.

Equality across the Borough

Increasing coverage  will
reduce smoke emissions and
therefore improve public health
outcomes for all residents

Anybody who buys or sells controlled solid
fuels in a SCA is guilty of an offence and
could be prosecuted except if it is for use in
an approved fireplace. In effect anyone who
wishes to continue to burn a controlled fuel
such as logs will need to ensure that they
are doing so using an approved appliance.
It is anticipated that it would cost in excess
of £1,500 to upgrade each appliance.

Even greater impact on residents with open
fireplaces and wood burning appliances
and existing business that sell and deliver
logs within the borough.

Implications

Financial Implications

Implementation costs will be covered by the DEFRA Air Quality New Burdens
Grant for 2022/23 (£11,710 was received in June 2023).

Permanent moorings including moored vessels may be entitled to apply for
reimbursement from the Council to upgrade their solid fuel appliance to
comply with the SCA requirements (up to 70% of the total cost). It is believed
that the cost of the upgrade could be as much as £3k and current estimates
suggest we have a maximum of 30 such moorings. It has not yet been
confirmed if DEFRA will provide additional funding for this and therefore this
could be a cost burden for the Council. It is however an option to exclude
moored vessels from the SCA which would mitigate this risk.

Any associated enforcement costs will be contained within existing budgets.
Legal Implications

This report supports the use of statutory powers to deal with offences of a
smoke control order.

Page 77



6.3. Equalities Implications

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken which identified no
major or adverse impact (Appendix 4).

6.4. Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Implications

The implications of the Crime and Disorder Act have been considered.

6.5. Biodiversity Net Gain

There are no Biodiversity Net Gain implications contained within this report.

7. Link to Corporate Priorities

The Environment | Reduction of harmful pollutants to the environment and
supports climate change strategy

Quality of Life Protection of public health
Efficient Services None

Sustainable None

Growth

8. Recommendations

It is RECOMMENDED that the Communities Scrutiny Group:

a) considers on the options provided for smoke control areas within the

Borough

b) indicates a preferred option enabling public consultation to take place
c) recommends its preferred option to Cabinet for adoption.

For more information contact:

Geoff Carpenter
Service Manager - Public Protection

gcarpenter@rushcliffe.gov.uk
0115 9148229

Background papers available for | Nottinghamshire Air Quality Strategy

Inspection:

RBA Air Quality Status Report 2023

Rushcliffe Borough Council Climate Change
Strategy 2021-30

Rushcliffe Air Quality Action Plan 2021-2026
Smoke Control Areas - do you know the rules? A
practical guide (defra.gov.uk)

Page 78



mailto:gcarpenter@rushcliffe.gov.uk
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fuk-air.defra.gov.uk%2Fassets%2Fdocuments%2Freports%2Fcat07%2F1901291328_Smoke_Control_Web.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CGCarpenter%40rushcliffe.gov.uk%7C255a837bb0e448da3e0608dbafe24a1c%7C0fb26f95b29d4825a41a86c75ea1246a%7C0%7C0%7C638297158926359395%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=0Xou3hRvwPUvr0HcfBtcNCdcSzF82JNZO5LDqvaV7Pg%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fuk-air.defra.gov.uk%2Fassets%2Fdocuments%2Freports%2Fcat07%2F1901291328_Smoke_Control_Web.pdf&data=05%7C01%7CGCarpenter%40rushcliffe.gov.uk%7C255a837bb0e448da3e0608dbafe24a1c%7C0fb26f95b29d4825a41a86c75ea1246a%7C0%7C0%7C638297158926359395%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=0Xou3hRvwPUvr0HcfBtcNCdcSzF82JNZO5LDqvaV7Pg%3D&reserved=0

List of appendices:

Appendix 1- current extent of SCA coverage
across the Borough

Appendix 2 — outline procedure for issuing a fixed
penalty notice

Appendix 3 — Scrutiny Matrix
Appendix 4 — Equality Impact Statement

Page 79




Appendix 1 1 Shaded (grey) area depicts current extent of SCA coverage across the
Borough

Vi TN (S5 = P i s
: L : ¥
- ST N By K7 e
= 7 H
$ 7
y o 2 ‘WIV Nis-Z e
2 / o * Y

& A St 1t “

o ) O,
N v & _ cﬁﬂ B & 22

0z %3 3 oft % \, = £ e
s n ”
N A (3] \ L‘El . —ra U Aot 7% oltgne g
/ b o ¢ ) U :‘W s 6 L IAB2 28 %
/ O \E|Sohes P R Gamston A
7 €| f / Bassingfield
, © ! e 20 = 3
y 8 e i 0,4} 792 S SN o 086 ZD N b
20 725N BE AN 221 NP Sy (e S e R
2 o 4 - S ,,§\\, 3 é B ‘ Granth® s
s RE Y cutedn BN BRIDGEORD’ NERTED : PN
% 5 Leigure By [L="77 \ ﬁ&’d’ .
S 7 PR d N\ __Nottir
= 4 == =
/ oH . A ) L) Nz
s .Fé:'b,e“ 2 > W)\ 1 $7 3
S G NCol LA I TP ; - 4> N—
.~ < 5 3 “ N\ e / ’
o Hl=0 e g - T
X ; # Q)5 T \ o [ 7
| Leisure /
f AN A A f 5 Corcra :h ®€ Q [ 4 7
' N S ‘\4:’ itford V{gl 0 \\é ' Pt 248
(55T
N
N
- ! '1 (>

Page 80



Appendix 2 Outline Procedure for Issuing a Fixed Penalty Notice

| First detect a STmniiel Issue a written warning

No
' amount of smoke from a improvement notice) to the———> Continue to emit or not? _.—— > "© furtner action
chimney in SCA person responsible
.
Additional notices for Further smoke '
each separate incident ygs emissions? < | Issue:anotice of intent
No
‘5 $ No |
No \
Sbjects fo the —_—D Issue a final notice —D Appeal?

notice of intent?

. .

No penalty Agree Decision on the Relact Decision - Withdraw,
e objection Confirm or Change

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Rushcliffe Borough

Appendix 3

Council — Scrutiny Matrix

Officer Request for Scrutiny

Geoff Carpenter — Service Manager, Public Protection

Proposed topic of scrutiny

Smoke Control Areas in the Borough

| would like to understand
(key lines of enquiry)

Smoke Control Area coverage across the Borough is
currently limited to an area of West Bridgford and Edwalton
which was declared under various orders in 1970s and
‘80s. The Environment Act 2021 came into force on 1 May
2022 and amends the Clean Air Acts by introducing civil
penalties for smoke emissions in a smoke control areas
and strengthens offences in relation to the sale of certain
solid fuels. The amendments are aimed at helping local
authorities reduce pollution from domestic burning
particularly very fine particulates.

Scrutiny of this topic will provide Councillors with the
information and understanding needed to shape the
Council’'s emerging policy on how the new provisions will
be implemented across the Borough.

| think this topic should be

Poor Performance ldentified

scrutinised because

v | Change in Legislation or Local Policy

v" | Resident Concern or Interest

(please tick)

Cabinet Recommendation

v | Links to the Corporate Strategy

Other (please state reason)

Officer Consideration of Request for Scrutiny

Officer Feedback (please tick)

- Issue already being addressed

x Issue of a complaint investigation |

in the last 2 years?

- Issue has already been considered

x Issue is a staffing matter x

- Issue is a legal matter

There is an alternative way of
dealing with the issue

Is there sufficient capacity ...

Page 83




- Scrutiny Work Programme? v

- Officer Resources? v

Recommendation Schedule for scrutiny

Consideration of Request for Scrutiny at COG

Public Involvement / engagement?

Expert withesses?

Portfolio holder?

Lead Officer? Geoff Carpenter

Proposed Timescale for Scrutiny

and Scrutiny Group October 2023 for Communities Scrutiny Group

Page 84




June 2012

Appendix 4
Rushcliffe EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM

Borough Council

Name and brief description of proposal/project / policy / service being assessed:
Review of Smoke Control Areas.
The Environment Act 2021 made amendments to The Clean Air Act 1993 and came into force on 01 May 2022. This fundamentally changes how smoke
smoke control orders work and how the rules are enforced by local authorities.
Information used to analyse the effects of equality:
Could May How different groups could be Details of actions to reduce
particulary | adversely | affected: Summary of impacts negative or increase positive
benefit impact impact (or why action not
X) (X) possible)
Beople from different n/a n/a
Qthnic groups
‘Men, women (including X n/a Reductions in mortality, heart disease,
omaternity/pregnancy respiratory iliness, stroke, diabetes and
%pact), transgender lung cancer arising from improved air
people quality.
Disabled people or carers | n/a n/a
People from different faith | n/a n/a
groups
Lesbian, gay or bisexual n/a n/a
Older or younger people X n/a Reductions in mortality, heart disease,
respiratory illness, stroke, diabetes and
lung cancer arising from improved air
quality
Other (marriage/civil n/a n/a
partnership. Looked after




children, cohesion/good
relations, vulnerable
children/adults)

OUTCOM E(S) OF EQUAL|TY IMPACT ASSESSMENT: (delete as appropriate)

n/a

Note when assessment will be reviewed (e.g. review assessment in 6 months or annual review).

n/a

Arrangements for future monitoring of equality impact of this policy/proposal/project:

Names of officers who conducted EIA and date

o
&eoff Carpenter
gervice Manager- Public Protection

o
Approved by: ‘

(manager signature)

Date:13/9/23




Agenda Item 7

Communities Scrutiny Group
Thursday, 5 October 2023

. Work Programme
Rushcliffe

Borough Council

Report of the Director of Finance and Corporate Services
1. Summary

1.1. The work programmes for all Scrutiny Groups are created and managed by the
Corporate Overview Group. This Group accepts and considers Scrutiny
Matrices from both officers and councillors which propose items for scrutiny. If
those items are accepted following discussion at the Corporate Overview
Group, they are placed on the work programme for one of the Council’s Scrutiny
Groups.

1.2. The work programme is also a standing item for discussion at each meeting of
the Communities Scrutiny Group. In determining the proposed work
programme due regard has been given to matters usually reported to the Group
and the timing of issues to ensure best fit within the Council’s decision-making
process.

1.3. The work programme is detailed in this report for information only so that the
Group is aware of the proposed agenda for the next meeting. The work
programme does not take into account any items that need to be considered by
the Group as special items. These may occur, for example, through changes
required to the Constitution or financial regulations, which have an impact on
the internal controls of the Council.

1.4. The future work programme was updated and agreed at the meeting of the
Corporate Overview Group on 5 September 2023, including any items raised
via the scrutiny matrix.

Members are asked to propose future topics to be considered by the Group, in
line with the Council’s priorities which are:

Quiality of Life;

Efficient Services;
Sustainable Growth; and
The Environment

2. Recommendation

Itis RECOMMENDED that the Group agrees the work programme for next year
2023 — 2024 as set out below:

Page 87



18 January 2024

e Flight Paths
e Work Programme

21 March 2024

e Streetwise In-Sourcing
e Carbon Management Plan
e Work Programme

xxX June 2024

e Use of Community Facilities
e Work Programme

3. Reason for Recommendation

To enable the Council’s scrutiny arrangements to operate efficiently and
effectively.

For more information contact: Pete Linfield

Director of Finance and Corporate Services
0115 914 8349

plinfield@rushcliffe.gov.uk

Background papers Available for | None.
Inspection:

List of appendices (if any): None.

Page 88



https://democracy.rushcliffe.gov.uk/documents/s13137/Enc.%203%20for%20Consideration%20of%20Scrutiny%20Group%20Work%20Programmesch.pdf
https://democracy.rushcliffe.gov.uk/documents/s13137/Enc.%203%20for%20Consideration%20of%20Scrutiny%20Group%20Work%20Programmesch.pdf
https://democracy.rushcliffe.gov.uk/documents/s13527/Enc.%202%20for%20Consideration%20of%20Scrutiny%20Group%20Work%20Programmes%20p.pdf
mailto:plinfield@rushcliffe.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 20 July 2023
	4 Review of Canal and Rivers Trust Partnership Funding
	Enc. 2 for Review of Canal and Rivers Trust Partnership Funding
	Enc. 1 for Review of Canal and Rivers Trust Partnership Funding

	5 Social Housing Models
	Enc. 1 for Social Housing Models

	6 Smoke Control Areas in the Borough
	Enc. 1 for Smoke Control Areas in the Borough
	EIA for Smoke Control Areas in the Borough

	7 Work Programme

